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Corporate Profile

DA

China Fortune Holdings Limited (“China Fortune” or the “Group”),
formerly named Fortune Telecom Holdings Limited, mainly
distributes mobile phones and digital products in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). The Group was established in
Hong Kong in 1992. It was first listed on the GEM Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock code: 8040) on
16th February, 2000, and then successfully shifted to the Main
Board (Stock code: 110) on 26th January, 2004. The Group
has a strong shareholder background and well operational and
professional management team.

The Group is the sole Nokia fulfillment distributor for all
Nokia Stores in the PRC. Besides, the Group owns a retail
chain in Zhuhai, the PRC for selling mobile phones and
telecommunication equipments.

In 2009, the Group acquired a Strontium mining site in the PRC,
as its first step in entering the natural resource industry.

The corporate culture of the Group rests on the integration of
the West and the East, modern and traditional management
philosophy, with an aim to build up a “Continuous Learning
Enterprise”.
“Human Enterprise”.

The corporate spirit of China Fortune focuses on
Under the leadership of its aspiring and
energetic management, China Fortune’s staff will team up
and move towards the Group’s goal of ranking as one of the
largest and best wireless communication and data products and
services providers in the region.

Subsidiary:
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China Fortune Holdings Limited
HBEEH ERER BEXH
Fortune Resources Fortune Telecom Fortune Investment

WEZERYR - AR BRREXEKRE
Exploration, exploitation,
refining and asset investment of
mineral resources

HBE - WEFRASEANMESTILETRR
Diversified business development through
investment, merger and acquisition

B 2 FrRT RS o 8E R B SR Y iR B IR TS BALREEEIE
Franchised distribution and supply chain Retail chain for

fulfillment distribution in China telecommunication equipment




6 China Fortune Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2011

Corporate Milestones
e e

1992
2.18 The former trading arm of the Group - Express Fortune Limited (“EFL”) was founded by Mr. Lau Siu
Ying and his brothers in Hong Kong.
BNEEEREABREBEVUREARAR ([RE])—AKERNH2ESHEME-
1992-94
EFL became one of Nokia’s earliest authorised distributors in the PRC.
RERRGEDKFPRBEEREE L —-
1997
Commenced Fortune Telecom Group’s franchise retail business in the PRC.
RhERRREEEEECEERTEER-
2000
2.16 Listed on the GEM Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock code: 8040).
MEBBRZPTAIRR B (AR K5 : 8040) °
12 A US$12 million syndicated loan was successfully arranged.
B Th % HE—1812,000,0003 7T 2 SR B B 5K
2001
7 Completed the acquisition of 51% shareholdings of Synergy Pacific (Holding) Limited (“Synergy
Pacific”).
TRWERESE (ER)ARAR (REEH]) 251 %KHE -
2002
5 Fortune Shanghai was acknowledged by Shanghai Waigaogiao Free Trade Zone Management Committee as one
of the best enterprises for commodity sales.
REFBEFBIEBRTREEZESEREnHEHEEREZ—
9 A HK$160 million syndicated loan was successfully arranged.
X Th % HE —18160,000,000/% 7T 2 $RE B 5K
2003
3 The Group has achieved a record annual sale of 2.1 million sets of mobile phones and a record net profit over
HK$60 million.
AEEE TFH_B—TEABHEENBBANTEBITAT L.
6 For a consecutive year, Fortune Shanghai was again acknowledged by Shanghai Waigaogiao Free

Trade Zone Management Committee as one of the best enterprises for commodity sales.

BEE-F RELSBEELBISHBARVEEEZEGERNRHEEREELRXZ—
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Corporate Milestones
TtXERE

2004
1.26 Listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock code: 110).
REBBRZMER LT (RGAR:110) °
2005
9 A US$16 million syndicated loan was successfully arranged.
pX Th & Bk —7H16,000,0003 7T 2 R B & 5K -
1 Fortune Shanghai increased its share capital from US$6 million to US$25 million.
K 8 #% H % 45 $36,000,0003% 7T 3% 11 225,000,000 7T ©
12 Successfully completed the acquisition of 100% shareholdings of Synergy Technologies (Asia) Limited,
and the disposal of 46% shareholdings of Synergy Pacific.
A% Ih 52 ik U B Synergy Technologies (Asia) Limited 2 100% A% # I H & K iR 25 5 Z 46 %I HE
2006
1 Newly obtained the nationwide distributorship of Samsung mobile phones.
MG =EBHEFEITEHDHE-
9 Successfully obtained the Fulfillment Distributorship for all Nokia Stores in the PRC.
BRIWBGHBRMMERETEREECREAEENHE-
2007
2 Contracted to acquire 51% stake in Zhuhai Reminda Telecom Equipment Company Limited ( 2k )& T &
I8 @R A R 2 7)) and completed the acquisition in October 2007.
RIHNKEREMERERMRBEBRAF ZS1%RE R ZEZF 1+ A ERIE -
9 Formed a joint venture with TeleChoice International Limited for the Nokia fulfillment business.

faTeleChoice International Limitedfk 37 — A& & AR B E TR X EBEK-

10.18 Name changed to China Fortune Holdings Limited.
FERTBERERERER AR -

2009

12.23 Completed the acquisition of 50.8% interest in Sifa Mining which has the right to conduct mining

activities in a Celestite (Strontium), Zinc and Lead mining site situated in the Hubei Province, the PRC.

B A NP BRI E —EREF A (88) - #F K 3088 55 1 17 SR 08 % ) A0 88 2 0% 2% H£50.8% A
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRESE

Lau Siu Ying

EIAN

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

TEEEEHTE
Dear shareholders, E=S A &=
REVIEW Bl
The fulfillment distribution business for Nokia Stores, HEDEEEREEESHEBRNRERNARAE
contributing to more than 90% of the Group’s revenue, BEEEBI0N kG HEAXNEBRFTFAZE
continued to make significant contribution to the overall BRAERERER -RZE—F A+ —
performance of the Group during the year. On 11th February, A HEDEMEEMAEETEIKEESH N

2011, Nokia and Microsoft announced their partnership plan BIFTARB 2 HEREB N REER A EH
to combine assets and develop innovative mobile products on EmADBIUELE-—TRAERERNZE
an unprecedented scale. We believe this move of Nokia can FHo N RBEBERE —E2 R HEIR
further enhance its competitiveness in the industry. Besides, the ARG EHESRKR T —=FFERIZTK I
mining business is now developing a new mining site exploitation BHEROR-ZZ——FFREHIRBE—F
system which is expected to be completed before the end of FR -

year 2013, and further exploitation can commence the soonest

at the end of 2012.



OPPORTUNITIES AND CHALLENGES

The world becomes even more and more challenging nowadays,
so as the mobile phone industry in the PRC. The PRC is one
of the strongest countries in terms of economic performance,
and with its huge internal consumption and room for expansion.
Though with keen competition, development potential is still
enormous. The Group will continue to strengthen our existing
relationship with the leading manufacturer to look for further
cooperation opportunities.

With a view to diversify the business of the Group, the Group is
actively looking for opportunities which will further enhance the
shareholders’ value.

APPRECIATION

Finally, | wish to sincerely thank our employees and business
partners for their continued dedication and commitment to
the Group, and | would like to express my appreciation to
our financial institutions, shareholders and investors for their
continuing supports and trust towards the Group.

Lau Siu Ying
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30th March, 2012

—T——FR | PEREEZERERAT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWEDT N

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Financial Review

In an industry like the current telecommunication one with
such an increasing velocity of change and fierce competitions,
being a fulfillment distributor for Nokia Stores in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) since 2006, we have to adjust our
business strategy in order to go along with Nokia and keep us
valuable and competitive. In the current year, we accepted a
lower turnover level in the Nokia fulfillment distribution business
for the sake in obtaining a better gross margin, and as a result,
the Group made a net profit of HK$11 million in this year, as
compared to last year of HK$15.6 million. Although the net profit
dropped in this year, the segment profit of our mobile phone
business increased from HK$27.7 million in last year to HK$35
million in the current year.

For our mining business which was undergoing the development
and construction of a new mining exploitation system throughout
the year, no exploitation of minerals was made. The revenue in
the current year represented selling out the inventories previously
exploited which was limited in volume and as a result, this
segment revenue dropped and recorded a loss in the year.

Owing to the above factors, the Group recorded a drop in the
consolidated revenue from HK$2,544.1 million in last year to
HK$1,765.9 million in this year. The gross profit amounted to
HK$61.3 million, a slight decrease when compared to the last
year of HK$64.8 million. However, the gross margin percentage
during the year was 3.5% which was higher than the last year
of 2.5% due to the improved gross margin achieved in the
fulfillment distribution business in this year.

Included in the other gains and losses in last year was a one-
off write back of HK$7.9 million from an amount due to a non-
controlling shareholder of Sifa Mining. The post-tax net effect of
this write back in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income was HK$5.9 million. No such write-back was recognised
in this year.

[a] /8 & A %

B 7% ol

REBE -_TEAFRIEAFZETEEELEY
%/\E %DHHEPHDZEELELD%F% T

ey LI A=E HEEHBEINEEITE
zqﬂ'AK%@z\ﬁﬁﬂ%%ﬂ‘%ﬁ%vﬁT@Eé%
BT 7BEESK URERFAGZ2EBRRES
N AEBRAFERATREEMNEMEX R
WAEEDTRXEESHEB & F5E Al
IR 8% 15 45 F11,000,0005% 7T 0 0k F E 8l
415,600,000/ 7T« & B AN F Z 45 F T Bk - A

EEBEHEFEF 2B ENBLEFEZ
27,700,000/ JT 38 & AN F [£ 235,000,000/8
7T|:o

AEEZEBEBRFA-BEEERIERN
R RAS - YRR T ARE - AFREZK
S REHEBERRZEFE BRBERR ¥
e BB Wk IR0 A N BRI SRS 1R

ERELtiBEE AEE2GEKEHE
¢F£22,544,100,oooﬁ§ET&1$¢&Z
21,765,900,0008 L-EF A LELFEZ
64,800,000/% T & 1 T % 261,300,000 T ©
AM FAZENETAREFE225%LHE

3.5% WITHRAFERAEENHEHZE
MR ERTE
EFEEREMKES REBET EE— K8 B &R

BREMNBEBE - ZFEHERRZFHIE
7,900,000/ JT It I8 B B 2 $i 18 52 BF BB AR
A2 mEUA K AL A5,900,0000 7T e NEE I
B8RS a0t /Y [B] B o



Management Discussion and Analysis

The selling and distribution costs amounted to HK$14.9 million
when compared to the last year of HK$22.5 million as the overall
revenue achieved during the year was comparably lower than
the last year in the fulfillment distribution business for Nokia
Stores. The administrative expenses amounted to HK$31.8
million, an increase when compared to the last year of HK$27.3
million mainly due to higher staff costs incurred and majorities of
expenses driven up by the appreciation of Renminbi and inflation
throughout the year.

As far as the mobile phone retail chain business in Zhuhai was
concerned, the revenue achieved during the year amounted
to HK$43.6 million, increased by 6.6% as compared with last
year of HK$40.9 million. However, the Group shared a loss from
it during this year. In view of the fierce competitive business
environment this retail chain facing, the Group took a more
prudence and conservative view when in evaluating the carrying
value of the goodwill in this retail chain, and provided a full-sum
impairment over it in this year.

The Group shared net gains of HK$5,000 from the result of an
associate during the year as compared to HK$0.4 million in last
year.

The finance costs decreased from HK$11.7 million in last year
to HK$6.5 million in this year due to the decrease in the level of
bank and other borrowings.

The net asset value of the Group attributable to owners of the
Company as at 31st December, 2011 amounted to HK$314.8
million or HK$0.38 per share when compared to HK$283.6
million or HK$0.35 per share as at 31st December, 2010.
The basic earnings per share was 1.94 Hong Kong cents as
compared to 1.82 Hong Kong cents in last year.

As at 31st December, 2011
other borrowings amounted to HK$15.3 million when compared
to HK$50 million as at 31st December, 2010, which was a result
of the intention to reduce the burden in finance cost of the

, the Group’s aggregate bank and

Group over the year.

BEEEFWmET N

FR - HE R KA A14,900,000/ T 0 11 £
F[Z R A22,500,0008 7 LT AR #EEDEE
BEEMRAEEDHEB 2 BBRER EFER
Lo 1T E A A31,800,0008 T  REFEZ
27,300,000/ 78 0 FEHMN B TR LR -
MEFRAREABRBERESSEIZRAX
FREL o

FRRERHEFRTEREB IE RF
" 8% 15 W & /343,600,0008 T B EFE 2
40,900,000 7t F716.6% ' AR E B A FANF
BoREBE - EXEETEREEEHE AR
BERE AKREEFGUTERCHERE
BF ERBR/BERTZEE  YRAFERHR
HEW 2R ERE -

AEBERFEDE—REERBRE 2F Wa
5,000/ 7T - M L 4F & 8 /400,000 TT ©

AR 2 B AR 1 b 4F 211,700,007 72
HLZE6,500,00078 7T+ I T3 i 1 8RAT & Bt 3 B8
KT B -

W-ZE——F+-_A=+—8B ARHEEA
JE (b AN 55 B & B2 JF B 3£314,800,00078 o ek & 1%
0388 L MRZE—ZFF+=-_A=+—HAI
7$283,600,000/% 7T 3k & 1% 0.35/8 It - FF N T ik
ERBFA1.94580 M EFERIA1.82781l -

R-ZZE——F+_A=+—8 AEEZIRT
N E & B 4258 515,300,000 70 MK =&
—Z= &+ = =+—HH1IA50,000,000/%& TT *
TTHEREAEEBEERFRRERE KA EE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWED

The gearing ratio of the Group, defined as the ratio of the total
long term liabilities to the shareholder’'s equity, was 0.35 as
compared to 0.37 as at 31st December, 2010.

The total cash and cash equivalents amounted to HK$78.4
million as at 31st December, 2011 without any deposit pledged
to banks. The Group is financed by a combination of its equity
capital, cash flow generated from its operation and bank
borrowings. During the year, there was no material change in the
funding and treasury policy of the Group. The Group considers
there is no material potential currency exposure as the majority
of its revenue and expenses are derived and incurred all in
Renminbi in the PRC. It is the treasury policy of the Group to
manage its foreign currency exposure whenever its financial
impact is material to the Group.

The inventories of the Group as at 31st December, 2011
amounted to HK$132.4 million, when compared to HK$187.2
million as at 31st December, 2010, mainly since less inventories
from the fulfilment distribution business for Nokia Stores as
driven by a lower turnover volume in the year. The inventory
turnover period was 34 days in this year when compared to 26
days of last year. The Group will continue to apply strict policy in
inventory control in the future.

The amount of trade and other receivables as at 31st December,
2011 was HK$59.9 million, when compared to HK$173.2
million as at 31st December, 2010. Trade receivables mainly
comprised receivables from the fulfilment distribution business
for Nokia Stores. In order to minimize the credit risk for the
trade receivables, the Group has implemented strict control on
the determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the revenue generated from
the fulfillment distribution business for Nokia Stores is mainly on
cash basis which further reduces the credit risk of the Group.

On 4th January, 2010, the Company issued and allotted a
total of 142,857,142 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the
Company upon exercise in full by the holders of the convertible
loan notes issued as a part of consideration in the acquisition of
our mining business.

AEEAFEEEEELXR (RPGEATRY
RERER LX) B35 MR T —TF+ =
A=+—HAE037-

RZZE——F+ZA=+—HZzHReRkHAEE
{8 ¥) 42 58 /578,400,000 7 » W AL (7] 77 50 E
HTRT - ANEBRSEBRA  LEEBHE
BenkBFTEESHIANESEES - FN A5
EpmEREFRRITESEAEE - AEEREA
BRAEERZE R HABDREF B L
ARBEMEL Bt W BEEAEEEAR - A&
ErEBBRAERIASEEEAVBLE
ZINEE LB o

rEBR-_ZT——F+-_A=+—HZHFE:
®E/3132,400,0008 T MR _E—ZTF+_H
=+—HBAJA187,200,0008 70 EZHKF R
EEBETREFHEETSEERXEENHE
B2HFERY ANEEZ2FERAENR34X
FEERAR26K - REE A& A4 E E KRS
FEESIEE -
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EERR AEE-BHEREEHEERBCE
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EEDHEBME KR zguﬁ mE A
JF

x
E-FREAEEZEERR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31st December, 2011, the Group had in total 224
employees as compared to 234 employees as at 31st
December, 2010. Employees were remunerated according to
the nature of their job duties and market trend. The Group
provided staff welfare and fund contribution to its employees in
accordance with the prevailing regulations in the PRC and Hong
Kong. There was no material change in the remuneration policy,
bonus scheme and share option scheme during the year. The
Group has a share option scheme under which the Company
may grant share options to the participants, including directors
and employees, to subscribe for shares of the Company.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Market Overview

According to the statistics released by the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology of the People’s Republic of China
(“MII”), there were more than 996 million subscribers to mobile
phone services in the PRC as at the end of January 2012,
equivalent to a penetration rate of 73.6 users per 100 persons.
The low penetration rate in the rural market, where more than
half of the population in the PRC resides, together with the 3G
services and the continued economic growth in the PRC, mean
that the PRC market still has a lot of untapped potential.

While there are continuing intense competitions among the big
mobile phone manufacturers in the PRC, they are trying to cut
the distribution layers by directly supplying to the provincial
distributors and leading retailers with a view to increase their
profitability. Because of this, leading vendors have developed
multi-channel distribution models which include “national

distribution”, “provincial distribution”, “direct to retail” and “direct
to operator”.

As one of the integrated fulfillment distributors in the PRC, the
Group provides all necessary services, which include but not
limited to transaction handling, credit financing, delivery, rebate
execution, stock buffering and B2B system integration, etc.
In return, the Group receives a contractual margin, as well as
various rebates as its service income. This business model is
more transparent, allowing the buyers, the suppliers and the
Group to share common information and enhances the efficiency
of all the activities of the value chain.

EEENWED

R-ZE——F+_A=+—HB AEEHEH
224% BB MR ZE—ZEF+_-_A=+—HA|
Bo3EEE -EEFTMEES 2BEME LD
HBEME - ANEBERBEFERES ZEAR
BlREEREEIR/AMREREEHR -FA-
SR A E REREAEUEERE
EoAREBECHIFTHARETS - B AAFA
mM2uE (PEESRES ) REAREAQF
IR 17 2 5 A e

EELE
TEHE

BEPEAREINMBTEMEB/IM ([T
MEBABBERZGTERE RZ2F—=
F-AK FEZBEHEERBAL AZER
996,000,000 & K& X 5E100A B73.6%
Fe AOEFRBEERAMRNU EZFRTS Y
ERE - N LSCGRBRAPBELEFREER K
MmN AERRNEREN -

BEEBRF MG PESABHERRERL
ABRBERAALOHBLEIETERHRE
MR HE - AE R B EE N - B - KBk
HEAILZRENHEN BRI2EOH] -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWED

Business Review

The fulfillment distribution business for Nokia Stores,
contributing to more than 90% of the Group’s revenue,
continued to make significant contribution to the overall
performance of the Group during the year. On 11th February,
2011,
to combine assets and develop innovative mobile products on

Nokia and Microsoft announced their partnership plan

an unprecedented scale. We believe this move of Nokia can
further enhance its competitiveness in the industry. Besides,
the mining business is now developing a new mining site
exploitation system which is expected to be completed before
the end of year 2013, and further exploitation can commence
in year 2012 when about half of the new exploitation system
is established. The management is exploring all commercially
viable opportunities to maximize the return from this investment
including but not limited to improvement of infrastructure and
expansion into processing of the ore, subject to feasibility study
and availability of funding.

Prospect and Outlook

The continued economic growth in the PRC is fuelled by a high
internal consumption. As the world’s biggest handset market,
there were more than 996 million handset subscribers in the
PRC with an annual growth rate of around 16% in terms of
new subscribers and replacements. There were over 13% 3G
users out of the total subscribers, and forecasted to increase
much further in the near future. On the other hand, there were
more than 320 million mobile Internet users which implies
that there are huge business opportunities in both mobile
application and mobile commerce. Nokia, whilst maintaining
its lead in middle and lower range handsets market, is also
moving to strengthen its presence in the higher end smartphone
segment by upgrading the Symbian platform and by forming
collaboration with Microsoft Windows Mobile. Its coming high-
ended handsets with Windows 8 system are highly anticipated.
In the longer term, the pass away of Steve Jobs and the
acquisition of Motorola Inc. by Google Inc. will potentially change
the competitive profile in the market. We believe that Nokia will
remain as one of the leaders of global mobile phone industry.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

EENSREBAERN

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. LAU Siu Ying, aged 48,
Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 1992. Mr. Lau
has extensive working experiences in the telecommunications
industry for over 20 years and has established solid business
contacts in both Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Lau is responsible
for directing the Group’s overall business policy and strategies
as well as overseeing the Group’s business development in
Hong Kong and the PRC. Prior to setting up his business, Mr.
Lau worked for Hutchison Whampao Group for approximately
5 years,
telecommunications in the PRC. Mr. Lau holds a bachelor
degree in Business Administration from the Chinese University

is the founder, Chairman and

in charge of the business development of the

of Hong Kong and a Master of Science degree in Information
Technology from the National University of Ireland, Dublin.

Mr. Lau is currently the trustee in New Asia College of The
Chinese University of Hong Kong, the Board Councilor of China
Mobile Communications Association and the executive chairman
of Chinese Chamber of Information and Communication
Technologies. In the aspects of social and economic activities,
Mr. Lau is devoted to promoting economic and educational
development. He served as the vice president of the Hong Kong
Association of Jieyang, the honorary president of Shanghai
Chaoshan Chamber of Commerce, the committee member of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in Yunfu
city, Guangdong province of the PRC, Hong Kong and Macau
Director of the Dongguan City Youth Federation and the vice
president of Hong Kong Island Chaoren Association Limited.

Mr. LUO Xi Zhi, aged 54, joined the Group in October 1995
and was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in
September 2002. Mr. Luo is also the Financial Controller of the
Group’s PRC operation. Mr. Luo holds a certificate in Accounting
from the Finance Academy of Jiangxi Province. Mr. Luo has
over 20 years of financial and accounting experience in the
PRC. Prior to joining the Group in 1995, Mr. Luo was the chief
accountant for Zhaoging Sz Di Telecom Co., Ltd.
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Mr. WANG Yu, aged 46, joined the Group in April 2006 and was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in November
2009. Mr. Wang is the General Manager of a subsidiary of the
Company and in-charge of the mining business segment of the
Company. Mr. Wang graduated from Xi’an Jiaotong University
with a master degree and a bachelor degree in Computer
Science. Mr. Wang has more than 10 years working experiences
in channel and distribution management on computer products
and mobile phones with local and multinational companies in
the PRC. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang was a General
Manager of a listed company in the PRC focusing on IT
business.

Non-executive Director

Mr. FUNG Oi Ip, Alfonso, aged 55, is a Law Costs Draftsman
approved by Law Society of Hong Kong. His firm, Alfonso Fung
& Co., is a leading law costs draftsmen practice specializing
in taxation proceedings in all levels of courts in Hong Kong. A
pioneer in his profession, Mr. Fung taught himself computer
programming, developed and published a specialist law costing
software as early as 1986. The software was subsequently
licensed to the Hong Kong Government for use in the Legal Aid
Department. Mr. Fung is also a developer of mobile applications
and he takes a keen interest in developing internet related
business. Mr. Fung is an Accredited Mediator, having been
accredited by the Hong Kong Mediation Centre since 2009. Mr.
Fung was appointed Non-executive Director of the Company in
October 1999.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHANG Wing Seng, Victor, aged 74, last held the position
of Managing Director of APCG Business Pte. Limited. Prior
to this, Mr. Chang was the Managing Director of Singapore
Technologies Telecommunications (Beijing) Pte. Ltd. based
in Beijing for 2 years. Mr. Chang had held various senior
management positions over 25 years with the Singapore
Technologies Group, mainly as the Director of Finance. Mr.
Chang was a graduate in Accounting from the Royal Melbourne
Institute of Technology, Melbourne, Australia and the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in Australia. Mr. Chang had also
completed the Program for Management Development at the
Harvard University Graduate School of Business Administration.
Mr. Chang was a certified public accountant in both Singapore
and Australia. Mr. Chang was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in October 1999.

Mr. WONG Lit Chor, Alexis, aged 53, graduated from the
University of Toronto, Canada in 1981 with a bachelor degree
in Arts majoring in economics and commerce and has obtained
a master degree in Business Administration from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1987. Mr. Wong has over 25 years
of banking, investment, corporate finance and securities dealing
experience gained from working as a senior executive in a
number of listed local and PRC financial services companies.
Mr. Wong is also an independent non-executive director of a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong. Mr. Wong was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in September 2006.

Mr. CHEN Yi Gang, aged 59, graduated from Shaoxing Institute
of Administration, majoring in Corporate Management. Mr. Chen
was a senior executive in a number of PRC telecommunication
companies and senior management in a number of large IT
enterprises. Mr. Chen has over 30 years of experience in the
field of telecommunication. Mr. Chen was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in February
2007.
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COMPANY SECRETARY NAEIME

Mr. LAM Man Kit, aged 36, was appointed as the Company ML LE 365 RN_E—SF_ARESEA
Secretary of the Company in February 2010. Mr. Lam is also RABZATIME - MEEN BARERZ B
the Financial Controller of the Group and the authorised BEN KN ZIEERR MEEREFTBKNE
representative of the Company. Mr. Lam graduated with a 22 EAETHETEELEN WARKHARE
bachelor degree of Business Administration from the University e sEre B NEEestiiAaee 8 -
of Hong Kong and is a fellow member of the Association of MEER _ZEZELF-ANMBAEFRR  £F
Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong ERPEBEZ TSR AR E o

Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining

the Group in January 2007, Mr. Lam has years of financial and

audit experiences in Hong Kong and the PRC.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance with a view to assuring the integrity,
transparency and quality of disclosure to protect the interests of
all shareholders. The Company has applied the principles and
complied with all the applicable code provisions of the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) for the year ended 31st December, 2011, except for the
deviations as stated in paragraph headed “Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer” and “Re-election of Directors”.

The Board will continuously review and improve the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company to ensure
the business activities and decision making processes are
regulated in a proper and prudent manner.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for securities
transactions by Directors of the Company during the year under
review.

Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, each of whom
has confirmed that he has complied with the required standard
as set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31st December,
2011. The Model Code also applies to other specified senior
management of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition and role

The Board of Directors of the Company comprises:

Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman)
Mr. Luo Xi Zhi
Mr. Wang Yu

Executive Directors:

Non-executive Director: Mr. Fung Oi Ip, Alfonso

Independent Non-executive Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor
Directors: Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis
Mr. Chen Yi Gang

The Board comprises three Executive Directors (including the
Chairman), one Non-executive Director and three Independent
Non-executive Directors of which the number of Independent
Non-executive Directors represents more than one-third of the
Board. The Directors are, collectively and individually, aware of
their responsibilities to the shareholders, for the manner in which
the affairs of the Company are managed and operated. The
Directors’ biographical information is set out under the heading
“Directors and Senior Management Profile” in this annual report.

The Board, headed by Mr. Lau Siu Ying, is responsible for the
overall strategic development of the Group, the monitoring of the
financial performance and the internal controls of the Group’s
business operations. All Directors and Board Committees have
access to external legal counsel and other professionals for
independent advice at the Group’s expense if necessary.
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Three Board Committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee (established on 27th February, 2012)
and the Remuneration Committee, have been established to
oversee particular aspects of the Group’s affairs. The Board
has delegated the day-to-day management and operations of
the Group’s business to the management of the Company and
its subsidiaries. Major corporate matters that are specifically
delegated by the Board to the management include the
preparation of the financial statements for the Board’s approval,
the execution of business strategies approved by the Board, the
implementation of internal controls system and risk management
procedures, and the compliance with relevant statutory
requirements and other rules and regulations.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship among the
members of the Board.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Provision A.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separated and should
not be performed by the same individual but Mr. Lau Siu Ying
currently assumes both roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.

Provision A.4 of the Code states that all directors should be
subject to re-election at regular intervals. However, Mr. Lau Siu
Ying, being the Chairman of the Board, does not need to retire
by rotation.

Mr. Lau Siu Ying has been in charge of the overall management
of the Company since its incorporation. As a result, although he
does not need to retire by rotation and assumes both roles of
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
the Board considers that such arrangement at the Group’s
current stage of development can facilitate the execution of the
Group’s business strategies and maximize the effectiveness of
its operations. Nevertheless, through the supervision from the
Board including the Independent Non-executive Directors, the
interests of the shareholders should be adequately and fairly
considered.
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RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

All Non-executive Directors of the Company are not appointed
for a specific term as stipulated under the provision A.4.1 of the
Code but are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-laws. In accordance with the relevant
provisions in the Bye-laws of the Company, if the appointment of
Directors is made by the Board, the Directors so appointed must
stand for election by the shareholders at the first annual general
meeting following their appointments and all Directors, except
the Chairman, must stand for re-election by the shareholders by
rotation.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Non-executive Directors, including the Independent Non-
executive Directors, are all seasoned individuals from diversified
background and industries and at least one member has
an appropriate accounting qualification or related financial
management expertise as required by the Listing Rules. With
their expertise, they bring independent judgement on issues
of strategic direction, development, performance and risk
management through their contributions at Board meetings and
Committee’s works.

The Independent Non-executive Directors also act as a
balance between the interests of the minority shareholders
and the Company as a whole. The Board considers that each
Independent Non-executive Director is independent in character
and judgement and that they all meet the specific independence
criteria as required by the Listing Rules. The Company has
received from each Independent Non-executive Director an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.18 of Chapter 3 of the Listing Rules and the Company still
considers such Directors to be independent. The Independent
Non-executive Directors are explicitly identified in all corporate
communications.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged the responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries. The auditors are
responsible to form an independent opinion, based on their
audits, on the Group’s financial statements and express their
opinions.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board had held two meetings this year to review the
financial performance of the Group and other major issues. The
views of the Independent Non-executive Directors were actively
solicited by the Group if they were unable to attend the meetings
of the Board.

The names of the Directors and the individual attendance of
each Director during the year are as follows:
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Attendance
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman) BI/NERE (FE) 2/2
Mr. Luo Xi Zhi ‘BEZRE 2/2
Mr. Wang Yu EFEREE 2/2
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Fung Oi Ip, Alfonso HBERE 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors BYKHITES
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor B 5K 5 5 A& 2/2
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis F A 2/2
Mr. Chen Yi Gang B IR I 5 A& 2/2

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established Board Committees, namely Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee (established on 27th
February, 2012) and Remuneration Committee to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in the
execution of the Board’s responsibilities.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has formulated written terms of reference for the
Audit Committee in accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules and its current members comprise:

Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor — Committee Chairman
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis
Mr. Fung Oi Ip, Alfonso

Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor and Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis
are Independent Non-executive Directors and Mr. Fung Oi
Ip, Alfonso is a Non-executive Director. The Board considers
that each Audit Committee member has broad commercial
experiences and there is a suitable mix of expertise in business,
accounting and financial management on the Audit Committee.
The composition and members of the Audit Committee comply
with the requirements under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee’s primary responsibilities include
reviewing the reporting of financial and other information to the
shareholders, the system of internal controls, risk management
and the effectiveness and obijectivity of the audit process. The
Audit Committee also provides an important link between the
Board and the Company’s auditors in matters coming within
the scope of its terms of reference and keeps under review the
independence and objectivity of the auditors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters
including reviews of the half-year and full year accounts for the
year ended 31st December, 2011. Each member of the Audit
Committee has unrestricted access to the auditors and all senior

staff of the Group.

Individual attendance of each Audit Committee member during
the year is as follows:

Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis
Mr. Fung Oi Ip, Alfonso HE
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company did not have a nomination committee during the
year and up to 27th February, 2012. The Nomination Committee
was established on 27th February, 2012.

The Company has formulated written terms of reference for the
Nomination Committee in accordance with the requirements of
the Listing Rules and its current members comprise:

Mr. Lau Siu Ying — Committee Chairman
Mr. Wang Yu

Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor

Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis

Mr. Chen Yi Gang

Mr. Lau Siu Ying and Mr. Wang Yu are Executive Directors and
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor, Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis and Mr.
Chen Yi Gang are Independent Non-executive Directors. The
main responsibility of the Nomination Committee is to ensure
a fair and transparent process of Board appointments, and
in particular to assist the Board to identify suitably qualified
candidates and make recommendations for consideration of the
Board and shareholders. While considering suitable candidates
of directors, the Nomination Committee would consider
professional knowledge, industry experience, personal skKills,
ethics and integrity as well as the ability to contribute sufficient
time to the Board. The Nomination Committee held its first
meeting on 30th March, 2012, with all members attended.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has formulated written terms of reference for the
Remuneration Committee in accordance with the requirements
of the Listing Rules and its current members comprise:

Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor — Committee Chairman
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis
Mr. Fung Qi Ip, Alfonso

Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor and Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis
are Independent Non-executive Directors and Mr. Fung Oi
Ip, Alfonso is a Non-executive Director. The Remuneration
Committee is responsible for ensuring that formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration packages of
directors and senior management. In determining the emolument
payable to directors, it takes into consideration factors such as
remuneration paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the directors, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group and the desirability of performance
based remuneration.

SLZ Ashe S
THEERMESE

REZEES

ARBRFANREE =
ﬁﬁh%éagoh%§A
FZAZ+tH-

——f-_A=++H
E&_Lb_é—g_:

ARRERBELETRAUZRE FFIREERE
SrEERERE REIXKERE:

HNEXE-ZRE
TREAE
LNt
\AUEE
BR 7T M 55 £

FNEERERTIREERWNITES MBKE
L. BRI AE R BRITEI S £ RSB IETT
EX REZEGZIERERMRESFTE L
ZERFRAREAE HrEHBBHEFENE
BEMNAERNERFHEE UHEFER
BREB -EERAENESNER REREZE
ERETREXAE TELR BAAXE BR
KEMBE ARSEFTEMNHRMFHEZEE
N RAEEZBEN_FT——_F=ZA=+tHBET
HEREH 2BXREHALE-

YWEES

ARBERELETRAUNZRE HRIHFMEZER
GrEEEEHE BEXNERRE:

BB E—Z S
=R A&
BEELE

E2t/E

WABRENRBRNVAEERBILIFATES
MEBXELLRBINTEE FHEZEER
BERRGFESESREEABZHFHES Z
RFEORERNRAREAE -EETRNTE
EZHER ZZEEMEENEXZEERE
RAFA 2B EEMIRNEREBE
AREBEEMER T ARBRRIREE 2 H M
A& AT EL e

7



26  China Fortune Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2011

Corporate Governance Report
TEERHRESE

Individual attendance of each Remuneration Committee member FR - ZHFMEZESKE 2 ER T EEEHT 0

during the year is as follows: ™~

Attendance
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor B BB A& 11
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis FHA LA 1/1
Mr. Fung Oi Ip, Alfonso HEELE 1/1
AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION 7% 4N
BDO Limited was re-appointed as the Company’s external BB EEREMEBAERAAENR S

auditors by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on
25th May, 2011, until the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting. They are primarily responsible for providing audit
services in connection with the financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31st December, 2011. During the year, the
fees charged to the accounts of the Group for BDO Limited’s
statutory audit services amounted to HK$819,000 (2010:
HK$780,000).

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal
controls of the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness.
The Board is committed to implementing an effective and
sound internal controls system to safeguard the interest of
shareholders and the Group’s assets. The Board has delegated
to the management the implementation of the system of internal
controls and the review of all relevant financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management function within
an established framework. The Board has confirmed with the
management that there was no change in the internal control
system of the Group.
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INVESTOR RELATIONSHIP AND COMMUNICATION

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of
transparency in the communication with the shareholders and
the investors. In order to ensure effective, clear and accurate
communications with the investors and analysts, all corporate
communications are arranged and handled by the executive
Directors and the designated section executives according to
established practices and procedures of the Company.

The Company has announced its annual results and interim
results in a timely manner during the year under review. The
Company’s Annual General Meeting provides a platform
for shareholders to have a direct dialogue with the Board.
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the Annual General
Meeting and the Chairman and other members of the Board or
their duly appointed delegates are available to answer questions
from the shareholders. The Company has also maintained
a wed site at http://www.fortunetele.com which enables
shareholders, investors and the general public to have access
to the information of the Company. Financial information and
all shareholder corporate communications of the Company
are made available on the Company’s website, which is to be
updated regularly.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company is committed to high standard of business ethics
and integrity. A code of conduct is enforced on all employees
of the Group. The employees at all levels are expected to act in
an honest, diligent and responsible manner. No personal gifts or
other forms of advantages from any person or organization doing
business with the Group can be accepted by any employee.
Business partners and customers are reminded from time to
time that our policy forbids any employee or agent of the Group
from accepting any gift from them.
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The directors present their annual report and audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
December, 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries and principal associate
are set out in notes 40 and 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st Decemober,
2011 are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 40 of the annual report.

No interim dividend was declared during the year. The directors
do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
30 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to shareholders as at 31st December, 2011 and
31st December, 2010 consisted of contributed surplus and
accumulated profits were nil.
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Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) it is, or would after payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman)
Mr. Luo Xi Zhi
Mr. Wang Yu

Non-executive director:

Mr. Fung Qi Ip, Alfonso

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis
Mr. Chen Yi Gang

In accordance with clause 87 of the Company’s bye-
laws, Messrs. Wang Yu and Chen Yi Gang shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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The term of office of each of the non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors is the date up to his
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s bye-
laws.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31st December, 2011, the interests and short positions of
the directors, the chief executive and their associates in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Future Ordinance (“SFO”)), which were required to be notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Name of director Capacity

EEgE 8%

Mr. Lau Siu Ying (“Mr. Lau”)
21 ESEAE (TRIEE]) PREEERB (W)
Beneficial owner

BB A

Held by a discretionary trust (Note 1)

30 China Fortune Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2011

EFRVTESTRBEUFATETZEHEER
BARBZARAAARFESREZA L
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RZE——F+ZA=+—H EF 1THEH
EEEBHEARARAREEEEIE (EER
BHERIEGD ([FHREEEG]) EXVED)
2R ERBEROTPREAREESFKFER
BIEXVHETRESH BAE AR REBHE
RHFBERARE ([BRAT])MiEmRAR (2
FERERBESLAEEIE BIEmEEX
BIEHA 2w RAR ) AR ALRR AIRE
BHERHEKROEGEFEZ S MR
R#KA HERBEE LT AR EEEITES
R 5 2R 4ESP A ([1F45PR]]) Mg AR 7 R
RETR S RABIT

(a) XLAAEREE010BTZEBER

Percentage of
Number of the issued share

issued ordinary capital of

shares held the Company
FBFE®T (AR ERT
ZEREE RAEABDL
188,300,013 22.92%
259,996,285 31.64%
448,296,298 54.56%




(b) Share options

Name of director Capacity

EEnR 54

Mr. Lau Beneficial owner

2lkHE EREEA
Held by spouse (Note 2)
@A (ME2)

Mr. Luo Xi Zhi Beneficial owner

BEZKE EmEAA

Mr. Wang Yu Beneficial owner

FTREE ERBEEA

Mr. Fung Oi Ip, Alfonso Beneficial owner

HBRERE EmEAA

Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor Beneficial owner

oK s EnEAA

Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis Beneficial owner

| KL EREEA

Mr. Chen Yi Gang Beneficial owner

BR 7Rl 5% A EmEAA

Notes:

1. These shares are held by Future 2000 Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which in turn is held
by a discretionary trust, the beneficiaries of which include Mr.
Lau, his spouse and his children.

2. Mr. Lau is deemed to be interested in 1,000,000 options
to acquire shares of the Company, being the interests held
beneficially by his spouse.

The interest disclosed above represents long positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company or its
associated corporations.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, chief
executives nor their associates had any interests or
short positions in any shares or underlying shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as defined in
the SFO at 31st December, 2011.
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BRE
Number of
Number of underlying
options held shares

FisERERE HEROHE

2,000,000 2,000,000
1,000,000 1,000,000
100,000 100,000
300,000 300,000
150,000 150,000
200,000 200,000
100,000 100,000
100,000 100,000
3,950,000 3,950,000
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SHARE OPTIONS B

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in NN e o s = R S RS U
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements. The following 231 TEAWEANREREFEANY &8 :
table discloses movements in the Company’s share options

during the year:

Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding
Exercise at beginning during at end of
Date of grant price of the year the year the year
R A TEE FOEKRTHE FREY FREKRTE
HK$
BT
Category | - Directors
BIFE-ESF
Mr. Lau 7.5.2007 1.29 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
b
Mr. Luo Xi Zhi 7.5.2007 1.29 100,000 - 100,000
BERHE
Mr. Wang Yu 7.5.2007 1.29 300,000 - 300,000
TREE
Mr. Fung Oi Ip, Alfonso 7.5.2007 1.29 150,000 - 150,000
BEERE
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor 7.5.2007 1.29 200,000 - 200,000
Bk
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis 7.5.2007 1.29 100,000 - 100,000
BN E
Mr. Chen Yi Gang 7.5.2007 1.29 100,000 - 100,000
BRINRI % &
Total for directors 2,950,000 - 2,950,000
EESh
Category Il - Employees
FNE-ER
Employees 7.5.2007 1.29 1,546,000 (200,000) 1,346,000
B8
Category Il - Consultants
ENE-EH
Consultants 7.5.2007 1.29 3,950,000 - 3,950,000
15
Total for all categories 8,446,000 (200,000) 8,246,000

BBt
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ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR BEROBEEZH
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme disclosed above, at no b EXH B ERESEIIN RNERE A
time during the year was the Company, its holding company or /N1 = S /N I 1 o o 1 PSRN B e Y i
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable TR L BE AR AR EEAEEAKND G
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of FREMEABE RO ESMER &5 -
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or WEZREBAMISHE I FEARAFRNMEES
any other body corporate. None of the directors, their spouses FRIA]RERNNTEFEESEZERN TG ITEF
or children under the age of 18 had any rights to subscribe for % EREF) o

the securities of the Company or had exercised any such rights

during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF BEENERCHARBERG2ES
SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

No connected transactions nor contracts of significance ARAREEBENARRE IR A B S E(]
to which the Company, its holding company or any of its WEARNERKENTFMEED L2 BE
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company REREREHNHTHEEEIHEE R ERE-
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FTERRER

RIBAN D R R IR R 75 K I B (5 01 32336 {F P 2%
EZEIBZRREMINIET R-_F——F+=A
=+ —H ARFAEEBETIRREARA D #
TR B RmMER -

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, as at
31st December, 2011, the following shareholders had notified
the Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of
the Company.

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

(a) FRAZKREE.10/ETZEER

Percentage of

Number of the issued share
Name of issued ordinary capital of
substantial shareholder Capacity shares held the Company
e T HERQRERT
FTERRER &6 EEREE RAZEDE
Mr. Lau Held by a discretionary trust (Note 1) 188,300,013 22.92%
2k HE 2RERFR (1)
Beneficial owner 259,996,285 31.64%
EmEAA
448,296,298 54.56%
Mr. Lee Wai, Timothy Held by controlled entity (Note 2) 188,300,013 22.92%
FEEE XEslEREs (Mix2)
Ms. Lei Yuting Beneficial owner 51,000,000 6.21%
EMEIE HaEEA
(b) Share options (b) BERE
Number of
Name of Number of underlying
substantial shareholder Capacity options held shares
FTERRER g7 FrsEREHA HEROHE
Mr. Lau Beneficial owner 2,000,000 2,000,000
2k HE EnEA
Held by spouse (Note 3) 1,000,000 1,000,000
@A (MHE3)
Mr. Lee Wai, Timothy Beneficial owner 100,000 100,000
FREEE EnEEA A
3,100,000 3,100,000




Notes:

1. These shares are held by Future 2000 Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which in turn is held
by a discretionary trust. The beneficiaries of the discretionary
trust include Mr. Lau, his spouse and his children.

2. Under the SFO, Mr. Lee Wai, Timothy is deemed to have
interests in the shares of the Company as he is entitled to
exercise more than one-third of the voting power at general
meetings of Future 2000 Limited.

3. Mr. Lau is deemed to be interested in 1,000,000 options
to acquire shares of the Company, being the interests held
beneficially by his spouse.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31st December, 2011:

(1) The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers and the largest customer represent
approximately 19.1% and 5.0%, respectively, of the
Group’s total revenue;

(2) The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers and the largest supplier represent
approximately 98.8% and 97.7%, respectively, of the
Group’s total purchase.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of
a director or a shareholder of the Company which to the
knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had a beneficial interest in any
of the Group’s five largest suppliers and customers.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Save as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 19 to 27 of this annual report, the Company has complied
throughout the year with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practice as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules which
were then in force.

Detailed information on the Company’s corporate governance
practices is also set out in the Corporate Governance Report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

36 China Fortune Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2011

TEFEFRHEER
BE-T-—FT-A=t+-ALFE:

(1) AEERAAARERGEATFELZH
EREH NG AEBRKRALTE Z219.1%
$5.0% :

2) $Elﬁ£7<1ﬁ)§ﬁ&ﬁ%7§1ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ’ﬁﬁ
ZRBRESRNEAKRBRBAE
98.8%)3297.7% °

RENEABE EF EHEARBEEFR
I KD A B BT RRS% M £ 2 A2 Ak
 BEREREERAREARES 2B R
-

TEER
BAFRFIOEF2TEZ L EERREENMH

BEN ARRRFEA—HE ié?.?ﬁ%ﬁ Mz E
MR RIS B 2 D EERAER TR

SRAIZHFAERTEHRERE

AEEZEEMESHRBFMZESGRL N

BEZERR BERABRBEE-

ARBEFZHMEBHFHEZESREARAZ
RexE BARREAETSHEEE -



The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme is set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31st December, 2011.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

No material significant events occurred after the reporting
period.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting
of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
Lau Siu Ying
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 30th March, 2012
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B RS

|IBDO

EEE : +852 2218 8288
{5H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA FORTUNE HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Fortune Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 40 to 130, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31st December, 2011, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong
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Independent Auditor’s Report

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31st December, 2011 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Ng Wai Man

Practising Certificate Number: P05309
30th March, 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEETEHBAR

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 &

e

S r = = EleSHE

2011 2010
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k=g FET FET
Revenue Wz 7 1,765,862 2,544,120
Cost of sales 5 AR (1,704,539) (2,479,356)
Gross profit EFH 61,323 64,764
Other income H U A 7,069 4,668
Other gains and losses H b Y zs K E5 18 8 (4,016) 9,280
Selling and distribution costs SHE R AR (14,885) (22,450)
Administrative expenses THER (31,823) (27,308)
Finance costs Bl & B AR 9 (6,535) (11,658)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—XMBAE 2 W= 33 2 -
Share of result of an associate DR —REE QR 2 A 19 5 444
Profit before income tax B T A5 4 A1 4 A 11,140 17,740
Income tax credit/(expense) FissiEe,/ (XH) 10 15 (2,104)
Profit for the year FERF 11 11,155 15,636
Other comprehensive income Hiap2mBA
Exchange differences arising on EEINEBBMEMESE 2
translation of foreign operations ER =R 22,022 20,931
Translation reserve released upon BOH M — KM B A Ak
deregistration of a subsidiary fRbR 2R E R - (3,941)
22,022 16,990
Total comprehensive income for FEZHEBIA
the year 33,177 32,626
Profit for the year attributable to:  FE{5F ZE F -
Owners of the Company ZiN/NEIEZF =N 15,922 14,875
Non-controlling interests FE 7 I 1 2= (4,767) 761
11,155 15,636
Total comprehensive income FEEEEAKA :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZiN/NEIEF =N 31,169 24,989
Non-controlling interests FEE )1 2 2,008 7,637
33,177 32,626
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRER
basic and diluted AR EE 15 1.94centsHll 1.82centsfll
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
meEMBERRR

At 31st December, 2011 R=Z——F+=HA=+—H

2011 2010
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 7E FET FAET
Non-Current Assets kRBEE
Plant and equipment 5 K 5% A 16 9,861 8,680
Mining right s R 17 452,060 433,683
Goodwill [EES 18 - 2,910
Investment in an associate —KEENB 2 WE 19 3,800 4,463
Available-for-sale investment A HERE 21 69 69
Club memberships eHMEHE 22 1,263 1,376
467,053 451,181
Current Assets REBEE
Inventories FE 23 132,365 187,155
Trade and other receivables EUE 5 ERER &
H A U BR 3R 24 59,894 173,150
Bills receivable EWEE 1,476 7,056
Amounts due from related parties ~ JEU & A £ 2 KA 25 3,590 3,172
Cash and cash equivalents HehBReEEY 26 78,370 45,667
275,695 416,200
Current Liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables ERNE SRR R
H A pE S BR 3K 27 105,876 203,873
Amounts due to related parties FEfREE A L 2 708 25 25,369 8,770
Taxation payables FE AR IR 6,462 6,782
Bank and other borrowings RITEEMEER 28 15,250 50,030
Promissory notes R 29 - 45,796
152,957 315,251
Net Current Assets REBEEFE 122,738 100,949
Total Assets less Current HWEEBRRBEE

Liabilities 589,791 552,130




42  China Fortune Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2011

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BRI R

At 31st December, 2011 R=_ZT——F+_HA=+—H

2011 2010
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
(S=a TET FAET
Capital and Reserves EXR#E
Share capital % AN 30 82,166 82,166
Reserves 1% 232,614 201,445
Equity attributable to owners of ZA2QTHEE AEGER
the Company 314,780 283,611
Non-controlling interests i EER 164,703 162,695
479,483 446,306
Non-current Liabilities ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EETIE B G 32 110,308 105,824
589,791 552,130
On behalf of the Board REXESZSS
Lau Siu Ying Luo Xi Zhi
2/ E BB
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR

FE EF
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Statement of Financial Position

B R 3R

At 31st December, 2011 R=Z——F+=HA=+—H

2011 2010
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt TExT FAT
Non-Current Assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries MEBARZIRE 20 52,721 50,577
Current Assets REBEE
Other receivables H th JE U BR 3K 277 273
Amounts due from subsidiaries LR NETE ] 20 = -
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 5 5
282 278
Current Liabilities REBEE
Other payables H b fE BRI 1,199 1,148
Amounts due to subsidiaries ANPGRS 20 30,225 6,520
Amount due to a related party JER—RBEAT 2 IA 25 22,977 8,037
Promissory notes A BB 29 = 45,796
54,401 61,501
Net Current Liabilities REBEETFE (54,119) (61,223)
Total Assets less Current WEEBRRBEE
Liabilities (1,398) (10,646)
Capital and Reserves BEXR#HE
Share capital % s 30 82,166 82,166
Reserves 15 39 (83,564) (92,812)
(1,398) (10,646)
On behalf of the Board REESS
Lau Siu Ying Luo Xi Zhi
2|/ & BBz
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR

- EF



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

SEEREER

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

At 1st January, 2010

Profit for the year

Exchange differences arising
on translation of foreign
operations

Translation reserve released
upon deregistration of
a subsidiary

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Transfer of reserve upon
forfeiture of share options

Issue of shares upon conversion
of convertible loan notes

At 31st December, 2010

Profit for the year

Exchange differences arising
on translation of foreign
operations

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Transfer of reserve upon
forfeiture of share options

At 31st December, 2011

Notes:

R-F-2%-F-8

FRAT

R EpagmELL
Eizg

B -THEAAS
Rz AERE

FEREBMA

REREXRE SRR

REBTEREHERR
HETRA

FRAEH
RENEHREMELL
EXRER

FREEAWMA
RERERRE SRR

:g__

= 3
+-A=t+-A

Attributable to owners of the Company

44 China Fortune Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2011

() The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal

value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal

value of the Company’s shares issued for their acquisition at the

time of the group reorganisation in 1999.

KATEEAER
Share Non-
Share Share Special  Translation  Statutory option  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve funds reserve losses Total interests equity
BRE FaEHIM
REx  ROEE KHRE RERHE  ixEd #E ERESR ag BE  REAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TET TR T TR TET TR T TR TR
(Note |) (Note ij)
() (i)

67,881 306,879 2,481 49,047 30,132 4,483 (302,649) 158,254 155,058 313,312
- - - - - - 14,875 14,875 761 15,636
- - - 14,055 - - - 14,055 6,876 20,931
- - - (3,941) - - - (3,941) - (3,941)
- - - 10,114 - - 14,875 24,989 7,637 32,626
= = = = = (55) 55 = = =
14,285 86,083 - - - - - 100,368 - 100,368
82,166 392,962 2,481 59,161 30,132 4,428 (287,719) 283,611 162,695 446,306
- - - - - - 15,922 15,922 (4,767) 11,155
- - - 15,247 - - - 15,247 6,775 22,022
- - - 15,247 - - 15,922 31,169 2,008 33,177
- - - - - (105) 105 - - -
82,166 392,962 2,481 74,408 30,132 4,323 (271,692) 314,780 164,703 479,483

Hit:
() HhFEEHEEMBRERBEARZKROEERER
AR —NANANFETEEEERFKEET

ZIRHEERZ ZHE e

(i) ZEEEBERRAEEEREARLNME

(i) The statutory funds are reserves required by the relevant laws
applicable to the Group’s subsidiaries established in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and can be utilised to offset the prior
years’ losses of the PRC subsidiaries.

(TR 2MBARZEREGAREZ
R L ARNEHEZETENERRBRESF

EZEE -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEEERER

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE—F——F+_A=+—HIFE

2011 2010
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5 THExT FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReEREg
Profit before income tax B BT 15 0 BDA A 11,140 17,740
Adjustments for: I
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMEAF 2 W= (2 -
Interest expenses FMERXZ 6,535 11,658
Interest income B YA (1,385) (317)
Reversal of impairment loss HEKE ZERREM
recognised in respect of trade JE U5 AR R e 3R
and other receivables VERIEN SEi=EEAE] (641) (397)
Allowance for trade and FIEUE 5 BRI E b FE UK
other receivables R B - 2,852
Impairment loss recognised MEEERZBESE
in respect of goodwill 2,910 -
Impairment loss recognised M—RBERRRERRZ
in respect of investment VERIEN SR
in an associate - 900
Adjustment to estimated HHESABESE AR
compensation by the vendors 29 - (109)
Share of result of an associate DE—RBERNF EE (5) (444)
Write down of inventories 5 & MU 5,944 9,486
Reversal of write down of & & UR # =
inventories (6,162) (2,871)
Depreciation of plant and BEREEITE
equipment 1,896 1,831
Write back of amount due to B EEMN—KE A A
a non-controlling shareholder —H IR R 2 258
of a subsidiary - (7,862)
Loss on disposal/write-off of & MR E &R EZ
plant and equipment 518 950 2
Amortisation of mining right PR v o - 533
Impairment loss/(reversal of REmeEmRZRERE
impairment loss) recognised in S CREEE#ER)

respect of club memberships 122 (11)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mERERER

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE—FT——F+_A=+—HIFE

2011 2010
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5 THExT FHET
Operating cash flows before EEECEFHAZ
movements in working capital KERERE 21,302 32,991
Decrease/(increase) in inventories  F &4, (3E40) 55,008 (20,757)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and FE YR 5 BR 51 I H At 8 UK BR 3K
other receivables wma (&) 97,951 (85,464)
Decrease/(increase) in bills receivable &4 Z s 4>, (& 0) 5,580 (7,056)
Increase in amounts due from JiE Uk B 38 A £ SRIE 3 N
related parties (418) -
(Decrease)/increase in trade and FE B 5 BR 50 I H th JE 1+ BR 3K
other payables CR ) /5 m (99,250) 106,517
Cash generated from operations REEBREHRS 80,173 26,231
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (B8 ERhEDE
(paid)/refunded Frig i (305) 2,076
NET CASH GENERATED FROM & EZEMBELFE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 79,868 28,307
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEY
Decrease in other assets H & ER D - 1,542
Proceeds from disposal of HE M E K& 1S 38
plant and equipment 112 -
Disposal of a subsidiary, tE—RHWEAR ER
net of cash disposed FIEEZHRS 33 (505) =
Interest received 2 A& 700 317
Repayment from non-controlling M AF IEERIMERR 2
shareholders of subsidiaries B - 4,571
Purchase of plant and equipment & E B = M & (3,846) (3,568)

NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED & 5E8 (FiH)
FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES FIEE & FE (8,539) 2,862




e Ot NA
47

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEEERER

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

2011 2010
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
Bt 5 FET FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES AEEE
Bank and other borrowings raised B &£ ZERITREMEE 24,600 182,900
Repayment to a director —REEZEN (15,429) (18,922)
Repayment of bank and ERETLEMEE
other borrowings (59,380) (147,500)
Interest paid [=ENELESS (1,380) (4,264)
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED m & E& (FTH), Fig
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES B& 38 (51,589) 12,214
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRESESEYILMTFE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 24,740 43,383
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS S #zHERRLEEY
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 45,667 7,264
Effect of foreign exchange rate R E) v &
changes 7,963 (4,980)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS A& >HRERRLZEY
AT END OF YEAR 78,370 45,667
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR MR

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

1. GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company with limited liability
incorporated in Bermuda under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended). The shares of the Company
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Its parent and ultimate holding
company is Future 2000 Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands. The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the
annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) for the convenience
of the shareholders, as the Company is listed in Hong
Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are distribution and trading of mobile phones
and related accessories, development of marketing and
after-sales service network and mining and processing
of celestite, zinc and lead minerals. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries and principal associate are set out in
Notes 40 and 41, respectively.

—REE

RAAFRBEAERE-NN—FQFE
(i) TaREIMR T 2R ER
na ERNDEEEBER AR DA
([BRFT)) E e ARR Z B RR KRR
ERAFAREBREXHSFMEIHA
A]Future 2000 Limited ° A2 A 3FE =
BREZELEMEB MU TEFRIARE
B — 8 AR EE -

ARBZYEEEBSARE (ARE]) -
HRARBREE LT BHEBRR )&
BFBHRERABIT (BT 25

KRB BFEER QA AR E) REKHE
RA([AEB) 2XEXBKRHEREE
BEEEMEBART ERMEHEERE
B RIGMLE AR KRS A FEREEA N
EEMIES TEZENBARIREEHE
NAE 2B D R HAM F40 %41 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR MR

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2 HEEBMBHREER ([EF80
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) FEEEER )

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1st (a) FRAFGT - AENEET & BB &%

January, 2011

HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs 2010
(Amendments)

Amendments to Classification of Rights Issues

HKAS 32
Amendments to Prepayments of a Minimum
HK(IFRIC) — Funding Requirement

Interpretation 14

HK(FRIC) —
Interpretation 19

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments

HKAS 24 (Revised)  Related Party Disclosures

Except as explained below, the adoption of these
new/revised HKFRSs has no significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

HKFRS 3 (Amendments) — Business Combinations

As part of the Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2010, HKFRS 3 has been amended to clarify that the
option to measure non-controlling interests (“NCI”) at
either fair value or the NCI's proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets is limited to instruments that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets in
the event of liquidation. Other components of NCI are
measured at their acquisition date fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
The Group has amended its accounting policies for
measuring NCI but the adoption of the amendment has
had no impact on the Group’s financial statements as
there is no business acquisition during the year.

RI-R=-F——F—F—HLH
BERPBHRERER —T-TFFE

CEHEN) B 7% 4 5 % Al
2 e

BEX R ER Ui da:|
B2 2 IEFT AR

B8 (BB BN&EES
HEREZEY) &k
—RREE14R
EFT AR

B8 (BB LA BRZR T B H#UR
HEREZEY) BB EE
—REF19%

BB EFER BEBEBALTZHE

F245% (KLHEET)

B T SCPTM R E SN B UL SRR
RETEBVBRE LG AEE 2
MBEBRRUBEBERTE -

ERMBHEEREIR (BRTE) -
EBAH

EAR _F—SFMBEMBEMBR
ERAZHE 2 —B D BEMBER
EEAEIRE FEF ABBRA
FlESIFEF RS ([FRE LR
@) ERREL AR EEFEZD
FER S BMIG 2 L OI10 B2 ET & IR 4E
Bl 2R EE ERNEBRE A
BERESYE THAAEBRER
REBHEEFETEALHNELZ
THR-JEGIMEERz EMAREED
TImEWBERAM s AFEE BRI
FEVBHMELENREE S —HTE
A AtERI - AEBEETE LA
BRI EMRAZ 8RR
MR MRS AT S AN E 2 F 5 ik
VEZE AAFELEXFHRE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR MR

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE—FT——F+_A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. MAEEBMEBE LD ([E55H
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) EMEER ) (&)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on (a) FRAHET - AENET & B B H &

1st January, 2011 (Continued)

HKAS 24 (Revised) - Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 24 (Revised) amends the definition of related
party and clarifies its meaning. This may result in
changes to those parties who are identified as being
related parties of the reporting entity. The Group has
reassessed the identification of its related parties in
accordance with the revised definition and no material
impact has been noted for comparative period’s
disclosure. The adoption of HKAS 24 (Revised) has
no impact on the Group’s reported profit or loss,
total comprehensive income or equity for comparative
period presented.

HKAS 24 (Revised) also introduces simplified
disclosure requirements applicable to related party
transactions where the Group and the counterparty are
under the common control, joint control or significant
influence of a government, government agency or
similar body. These new disclosures are not relevant
to the Group because the Group is not a government
related entity.

BRI -R-F——F—FA—HLHX

/435
(%)

BBETERE24% (RIEFT) — B8
BATZHE

ARG ERFE245 (KEFT) BRI
BALTZEEEHEILESER
& BRERT Al BE @ EA IR BB
TERBZEEALZRFEALED-
AEEERBEETREREEMEA
T2 RBI B EH R
BREIBEAZE -RAEBGHE
AIE245% (REFDHAEERZ7S
LR HARE MR B 2B AL
BomABITEYE-

BB G EANFE245 (KEFT) N5
EERRNBEALRS 2BERER
EERARBEYF XM BT
REHBEXBLORE 2 KRZEH - B
FEHKBEAZE AR AEEILIE
BFREERS HREFMPEEANE
E A sl
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR MR

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE—F——F+_A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group’s financial statements, have been issued,
but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group.

2. RABAMBREEN (1EEY
BHmEEQ]) (&)

(b) E AL K M2 HET AT
BEEBHEER

AEEYEEFRA TIIERMER
ARAE R A BE SR N 6% 18 B 75 ik AR
IR R BB BIREER

Amendments to
HKFRS 7

Amendments to
HKFRS 7

Amendments to
HKAS 1 (Revised)

Amendments to
HKAS 32

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets'

Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income?

Presentation — Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities*

Financial Instruments®

Consolidated Financial
Statements®

Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities®

Fair Value Measurement®

Separate Financial Statements?®

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures®

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st

July, 2011

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st

July, 2012

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st

January, 2013

o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st

January, 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st

January, 2015

EEMBREEN HE-MBEE
BIHRAEFT R 2B
ERVHERELEL  WEIEENE
BIRZAEFT A BEMTH

=L
HFAEGEER 2 HEMEE
ERE v cHWN WAIE B2
(&)
BB EFER 25—
FI2FZAEFTA BERVH
A&
BAEMBHRE Bt 75 T A5
% B EBO5R
BEMBRE BAEMEHRRS
A RIZE10%5%
BBV BIRE BEANEMER
B 125k 2 RS
BAEMBERE ARFEHES
%A 1355

B EFER T8 3 B IS R RS
FE27R
—E——%F)

BAEER i ANEII
F285% REDEZ
—E——fF) "A&s

VO RIE—FE AR ERAKRZ

FEHARER

2 R-TE-_FEA-HEHZMRKAZ

FREHBREAER

¢ RIE-=F— A HEZRMRKZ

FEHRER

4 R-E—NE—F—ASKHEERBY

FE R AR

° R-F-AF - A HXHERRHKZ

FEBHRAER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR MR

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE—FT——F+_A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. KEAERBUEREERN ([FBH
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) WImEXER ) (&)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but (b) EREMHAE KL Z H G AEIEET

are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 - Disclosures - Transfers
of Financial Assets

The amendments to HKFRS 7 improve the disclosure
requirements for transfer transactions of financial
assets and allow users of financial statements to
better understand the possible effects of any risks that
may remain with the entity on transferred assets. The
amendments also require additional disclosures if a
disproportionate amount of transfer transactions are
undertaken around the end of a reporting period.

Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) — Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) require
the Group to separate items presented in other
comprehensive income into those that may be
reclassified to profit and loss in the future (e.g.
revaluations of available-for-sale financial assets) and
those that may not (e.g. revaluations of property, plant
and equipment). Tax on items of other comprehensive
income is allocated and disclosed on the same basis.
The amendments will be applied retrospectively.

BB BHREER (&)

ERMBHREENETR BT -
BE-MBEEZER

BAMBREEMNBTR BT AL
EMBEEEERIHCWERTE &
MBHRREMEERLTREBNAE
BEECEMEARZAEEE ZF
ERTMREESRARAMBET2E
ERX S S BRI TR AE LR
SMRER

BB ENEIR ZBITR (KB
i) — 25 HEMEZEKAEE

FEEGENEIR BTN (KE
FRERNEE R 25N E M2 EW
AZBB DRZEFAERBREN
DEERS BB (PR H &R
BEEZEMB) RZERLEEHND
BEBazEB (MW BER
B ER) - 2 m KR AR E
M2 HIAE S RBREELET DB RH
BE-BBEIRENER-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR MR

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE—F——F+_A=+—HIFE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

Under HKFRS 9, financial assets are classified into
financial assets measured at fair value or at amortised
cost depending on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. Fair
value gains or losses will be recognised in profit or
loss except for those non-trade equity investments,
which the entity will have a choice to recognise the
gains and losses in other comprehensive income.
HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities that are
designated at fair value through profit or loss, where
the amount of change in fair value attributable to
change in credit risk of that liability is recognised in
other comprehensive income unless that would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition,
HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for
derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities.

RRAEEMBHREER ([FEY
BHmEEQ]) (&)

(b) E AL K M2 HET - AEMEET

BB BHREER (&)
ERVBBEEAFIR-MHKITA

REBBRBHRELEFONR M5
BENBRRAFESILEIHAAG
BZMBEE GTEREEMBE
EZEBEARMBEEZANRE
MEREHME - R FEZKAEIEE
HRBmTER EERETHEER
BAKRE BREMESENEMEEK
AFER W REE FEMBRE
ERFON EBE L G ERE395
ERMBABCHR D ERFER
ECIEREEREATFEFABREZ
MBaEns ARABEzEERR
BHMaI B AFEESHSREINE
2 mBATHER  FRIFLBHEE
HIEBAGFHEARC - LS BARM B RS
R FO IR E BB G AR E395
BRARILIERMBEERMBARZ
MR °

S



L
54

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. MAEEBMEBE LD ([E55H
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) R ERR ) (&)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 introduces a single control model for
consolidation of all investee entities. An investor has
control when it has power over the investee (whether
or not that power is used in practice), exposure
or rights to variable returns from the investee and
the ability to use the power over the investee to
affect those returns. HKFRS 10 contains extensive
guidance on the assessment of control. For example,
the standard introduces the concept of “de facto”
control where an investor can control an investee
while holding less than 50% of the investee’s voting
rights in circumstances where its voting interest is
of sufficiently dominant size relative to the size and
dispersion of those of other individual shareholders to
give it power over the investee. Potential voting rights
are considered in the analysis of control only when
these are substantive, i.e. the holder has the practical
ability to exercise them. The standard explicitly requires
an assessment of whether an investor with decision
making rights is acting as principal or agent and also
whether other parties with decision making rights are
acting as agents of the investor. An agent is engaged
to act on behalf of and for the benefit of another
party and therefore does not control the investee
when it exercises its decision making authority. The
implantation of HKFRS 10 may result in changes in
those entities which are regarded as being controlled
by the Group and are therefore consolidated in the
financial statements. The accounting requirements in
the existing HKAS 27 on other consolidation related
matters are carried forward unchanged. HKFRS 10 is
applied retrospectively subject to certain transitional
provisions.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 12 - Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

HKFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent the
disclosure requirements about interests in subsidiaries,
associates and joint arrangements. It also introduces
new disclosure requirements, including those related
to unconsolidated structured entities. The general
objective of the standard is to enable users of financial
statements to evaluate the nature and risks of a
reporting entity’s interests in other entities and the
effects of those interests on the reporting entity’s

financial statements.

HKFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 provides a single source of guidance
on how to measure fair value when it is required or
permitted by other standards. The standard applies
to both financial and non-financial items measured
at fair value and introduces a fair value measurement
hierarchy. The definitions of the three levels in this
measurement hierarchy are generally consistent
with HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”.
HKFRS 13 defines fair value as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants
The
standard removes the requirement to use bid and

at the measurement date (i.e. an exit price).

ask prices for financial assets and liabilities quoted
in an active market. Rather the price within the bid-
ask spread that is most representative of fair value in
the circumstances should be used.
extensive disclosure requirements to allow users of

[t also contains

the financial statements to assess the methods and
inputs used in measuring fair values and the effects of
fair value measurements on the financial statements.
HKFRS 13 can be adopted early and is applied
prospectively.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the potential impact of these new/revised HKFRSs
and the directors so far concluded that the application
of these new/revised HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except that certain financial
instruments are measured at fair values, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. In addition, these financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Inter-company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE —E——F+-A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income from the effective dates of
acquisition or up to the effective dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of the
Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests
issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or losses
are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on
a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiaries either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other non-controlling interests are measured at fair value
unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless they
are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about
the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Contingent consideration balances arising from business
combinations whose acquisition dates preceded 1st
January, 2010 (i.e. the date the Group first applied HKFRS
3 (2008)) have been accounted for in accordance with the
transition requirements in the standard. Such balances
are not adjusted upon first application of the standard.
Subsequent revisions to estimates of such consideration
are treated as adjustments to the cost of these business
combinations and are recognised as part of goodwill.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interest
and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interest is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are
accounted for in the same manner as would be required if
the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests at
initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share
of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling interests even if
this results in those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Company is able to
exercise control. Control is achieved where the Company,
directly or indirectly, has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.

In assessing control, potential voting

rights that are presently exercisable are taken into account.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss,
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

if any. The results of subsidiaries are

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess of
the aggregate of consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests over the fair value
of identifiable assets,
acquired.

liabilities and contingent liabilities

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of consideration
paid, the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the

acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Goodwill (Continued)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that financial year.
When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other
assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying
amount to each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed in
subsequent period.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investments in associates are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost as
adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share
of the net assets of the associates, less any identified
impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate,
the Group discontinues recognised its share of further
losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a
liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of that associate.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Investments in associates (Continued)

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the
date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill. The goodwill
included within the carrying amount of the investment is
not tested for impairment separately. Instead, the entire
carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment
as a single asset. Any impairment loss recognised is not
allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment in the associate.
Any reversal of impairment loss is recognised to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the principal
outstanding at the applicable interest rate.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives and
after taking into account of their estimated residual values,
using the straight-line method. The principal annual rates
used for the current year are as follows:

Leasehold improvements  5%-20% or over the term of the
relevant leases, whichever is

shorter

Furniture, fixtures and 20%-33%
equipment

Motor vehicles 20%-25%

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the profit or loss
in the period in which the item is recognised.

Construction in progress represents plant and equipment
under construction or pending installation and is stated
at cost less any impairment losses. No provision for
depreciation is made on construction in progress until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and ready
for intended use. Construction in progress is classified to
the appropriate category of plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Intangible asset
Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite life are carried at cost less
any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Mining right

Mining right is stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment loss. Mining right
is amortised using the units of production method based on
the proven and probable mineral reserves.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
reduced. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. In addition,
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication
that they may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Provision for close down and restoration costs

Close down and restoration costs are provided in the
accounting period when the obligation arising from the
related disturbance occurs, whether this occurs during mine
development or during the production phase, based on
the net present value of estimated future costs. The cost is
capitalised where it gives rise to future benefits, whether the
rehabilitation activity is expected to occur over the life of the
operation or at the time of close down. The capitalised cost
is amortised over the life of the operation and the increase
in the net present value of the provision is included in
borrowing costs. Where there is a change in the expected
decommissioning and restoration costs, an adjustment is
recorded against the carrying value of the provision and
related assets, and the effect is then recognised in the
profit or loss on a prospective basis over the remaining life
of the operation. Provision for close down and restoration
costs does not include any additional obligations which
are expected to arise from future disturbance. The cost
estimates are reviewed and revised at the end of each
reporting period to reflect changes in conditions.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, cost of conversion and other costs that
have been incurred in bringing the materials and supplies to
their present location and condition, is calculated using the
first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter
into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of
rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

3.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE—FT——F+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. TEEHHE(£)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.,e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the end of reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (the translation reserve).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in the translation reserve.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost
of an asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and consequently are effectively recognised in profit
or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
other PRC state-managed retirement benefit schemes
are charged as expenses when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.

3.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE=Z——&F+=-A=+—RHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be recognised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is recognised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of reporting period. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the end of reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

3.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE=Z——&F+=-A=+—RHAILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and recognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables, bills
receivable, amounts due from related parties, cash and
cash equivalents) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
or held-to-maturity investments. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these assets are carried at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for impairment losses and foreign exchange
gains and losses on monetary instruments, which are
recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of
other reporting period subsequent to initial recognition (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

3.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE—_F——F+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of reporting period. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

e granting concession to a debtor because of debtor’s
financial difficulty; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Where a decline in the fair value constitutes objective
evidence of impairment, the amount of the loss is removed
from equity and recognised in profit or loss.

Any impairment losses on available-for-sale debt
investments are subsequently reversed in profit or loss
if an increase in the fair value of the investment can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment, any increase in fair
value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE—FT——F+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For available-for-sale equity investment that is carried at
cost, the amount of impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the asset and
the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss is not reversed.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on
the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and
other payables, amounts due to related parties, bank and
other borrowings and promissory notes are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is recognised in profit
or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial asset or
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services
are measured at the fair values of the services received,
unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which
case the services received are measured by reference to
the fair value of the share options granted. The fair values
of the services received are recognised as expenses
immediately, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
option reserve) when the Group obtains the goods or when
the counterparties render services, unless the goods or
services qualify for recognition as assets.

Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

()  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE—_F——F+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FEEHE (f””)
Related parties (Continued) BEANL (&)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following b) FATIIEHE s ERANEAESAH

conditions apply: (Continued) o O(8)

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third (i) EFHRERA—F=F26&1
party. ¥o

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and vy ER—FRF=-FEEZEZED
the other entity is an associate of the third entity. ¥ ME—FAZE=1TE>

AN

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for () ZEBDAISBENEREER
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an AzERZESEAMEZEIK
entity related to the Group. BmRETE -

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (Vi) ZERX @B ATESIsk
person identified in (a). HREEH -

(vii) A person identified in (a)() has significant influence (vii) @QOERFTHALHERBBEERT
over the entity or is a member of key management BhHyAZEE (HZEEHEA
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the AEBEEBABZ AL
entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family —ZANTZEHRRBRKEETERIZEZ
members who may be expected to influence, or be ATHEBEEETEEANEEEYZAT
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity ZEEBREKE XYBIE:

and include:

()  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner; () ZBALZFLREBHREZMF:
(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; iy ZBRALZEBIREBHEZ T

and 5E
(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or (i) ZBALTHZBALZEBRRER

domestic partner. HeXEAN
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets within the next financial year.

HATRERRZEERR

A FE R M AESPT 8L 2 AR B & 5T BUREF - K
NEBSFAHEARBELMEEAFSA
ZEERBBERTEFD G RRE %
SMFAREBARRIDBREBEILBRLRAR
HEZEMRAEMEH BERAERLGHE
ZF b AR -

st RERRREFERS -Gt AZ
ERTMERT (A a2 B (ISR B &%
HiR) - B RT B MR R EARE (fRERT %
BN MR K EARE) R o

TXEINBEBARKEZRRIARRZHY
BEAGZ I RERZEMEZRR
ZERR MM RAEEET — @R KF
BrzEEREEAFELERFE-
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Mining right

The mining right represents the right of Sifa Mining to
conduct mining activities in the location of Huangshi in
Hubei in the PRC. The mining right is amortised using
the units of production method based on the proven and
probable mineral reserves. However, the mining operating
permit issued to the Group by the Department of Land and
Resources of Hubei Province (J#1t & B & JREE) is only
for a term of 5 years from 25th September, 2007 to 25th
September, 2012, though it is eligible for renewal thereafter.
In the opinion of the directors, the application for renewal
is procedural and the Group should be able to renew its
mining operation permit without significant costs, until all
the proven and probable minerals have been mined. In case
the mining operating permit cannot be renewed, the Group
may suffer a loss on its remaining investment in the mining
right.

Production capacity assumption

The mining operation permit mentioned above limits the
production capacity to 100,000 tons per year. In the
opinion of the directors, the application for increasing the
production capacity is procedural and the Group should
be able to obtain a mining operation permit with higher
production capacity without significant costs. In case the
production capacity limit cannot be increased, the carrying
amount of the mining right may be affected.

HEATRERZEZETERER (&)

RERE

FIERERMBEEENFENILE EAMNEK
B DEARCKRBARETEERENSE
UESZFHHE - AM BRENILERLE
REFZELNFETAEE AT B
EE+FNA+RBE_ZE——FNA
ZThABAIE - HERAER - E=RA - H
EEMEATHAEEES  MAREE A
BEHRESAIEMBAEEANE BEEFA
ERARKENBEEE 2 EMAER LM
FRTAUETEEN AEERREERN
HRTIRENTHERE-

ERERE

-t ER#E BT AT EF 6 £F 2= BE PR 1 /2 100,000
WE - ERRA  HREEINEREATHRKEH
BF BWASEATNESRSE/RZFE
A B M B A E KRS o 4 RGN E B
R -HEBEEEmAERNREETE -
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Reserves estimates

Reserves are estimates of the amount of products that can
be economically and legally extracted from the Group’s
properties. In order to calculate reserves, estimates and
assumptions are required about a range of geological,
technical and economic factors, including quantities,
grades, production techniques, recovery rates, production
costs, transport costs, commodity demand and commodity
prices.

Estimating the quantity and/or grade of reserves requires
the size, shape and depth of ore bodies or fields to be
determined by analysing geological data such as drilling
samples. This process may require complex and difficult
geological judgments and calculations to interpret the data.

Because the economic assumptions used to estimate
reserves change from period to period, and because
additional geological data is generated during the course of
operations, estimates of reserves may change from period
to period. Changes in reported reserves may affect the
Group’s financial results and financial position in a number
of ways, including the following:

(i)  Asset carrying values may be affected due to changes
in estimated future cash flows.

(i)  Depreciation, depletion and amortisation charged to
profit or loss may change where such charges are
determined by the units of production basis, or where
the useful economic lives of assets change.

(i) Decommissioning, site restoration and environmental
provisions may change where changes in estimated
reserves affect expectations about the timing or cost of
these activities.

(iv) The carrying value of deferred tax may change as
a result of changes in the asset carrying values as
discussed above.

M TRERZEZETERER (&)

8 153

REDANANEERAZITERELE
AEEBERRNSZHAERBE - BIE
8 ApinE SR EERZREEL
et hBRE EFEEHE R E£ER
- BRUR A ERA EBRAAN BT
KRB mER e

it REZHER KA LK ARER
RESHEHEI N ETBERIBESZ
BRI RRE » W T ek M BB ERE
ZIE H R R EAD TR B BE -

ARG REMAEERREEE TRN
HEmNRE MEERRETERINELM
8B RFEELEXEBEIRAEMA
s  EMFENEBABIRTEF
EAREENTHEEARMERR P8
ETAEERE:

() BERFRRRESAENEHAZEER
ERREE -

(i) fRIrE FERRBEHEIHBREEENM
REETNETF REENAEAR
BEREME RNEBDE AR
E RRMEETREAME-

(i) HAFRENSEBEZERE BSE
B RIRR TREHMEERERA
R BHSEERIRFBERIE LA
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Provision for close down and restoration costs

The provision for close down and restoration costs is
determined by management based on their past experience
and best estimation of future expenditures, after taking
into account the existing relevant regulations in the
PRC. However, in so far as the effect on the land and
the environment from current mining activities becomes
apparent in future years, the estimate of the associated
costs may be subject to revision from time to time. The
aggregate carrying value of provision was approximately
HK$1,171,000 (2010: HK$562,000).

Estimated impairment of trade and other receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group takes into consideration the estimation of future cash
flows. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31st December,
2011, the carrying amount of trade and other receivables
was approximately HK$59,894,000 net of allowance for
doubtful debts of approximately HK$17,213,000 (2010:
HK$173,150,000 net of allowance for doubtful debts of
approximately HK$17,718,000).

Estimated allowance for inventories

Management reviews the inventories listing at the end of
each reporting period, and makes allowance for obsolete
and slow-moving inventory items identified. Allowance was
made by reference to the latest market value for those
inventories identified. Where the net recognised value is less
than the cost, a material write down may arise. As at 31st
December, 2011, the carrying amount of inventories (net
of allowances) was approximately HK$132,365,000 (2010:
approximately HK$187,155,000).

M TRERZEZETERER (&)

B RELEKELEE

AR RERKN AR EREEEEZREAES
B REAERE  BREBEERIERRK
T HMREGTMETE -AMm: £ 8 ATH
REEINAREFH T HERRENY
BEHBABNBRT  BHEKKNOGETH
BRATRER BHRBENEREDABENR
1,171,000/ 7L (=& — T F : 562,000/8
TT) e

18 51 FE K B 5 S 5% R AL b & S 74 B 1

WEEREEBEBZZEEE AAEH
EEFBARKRBESRE-REBSBZS
HREAERAERANV S EERERT
E(ABERERRFTEZERAE)BLR
ZEFRRRERE (TRERIIBZE
REEBE)BEENEZBITE - WMERR
RKReRELNEHRSE BIAEELSE
AREBE - R_FT——F+=-A=1+—
H EWEZERRREMERERRZER
18 49 559,894,000/ 7T (2 1Bk R B #
#H#4 517,213,000 L) (ZE—ZTF:
173,150,000 7T (E B REFEELD A
17,718,000/ 7T) ) °

14t F BB

ERERNSERBLEAMIZEFE
WHEHCRERBHEFEETRME-
BED2EZZSE B FENSAHATE
B - MAERFEERKAE - AIEEEEXR
W -R=—T—F+=-A=+—RH F&
BREE (2 Bk &) 49 5132,365,0007%
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while recognised the return to shareholders through the
recognised of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes bank and other borrowings and promissory notes
as disclosed in Notes 28 and 29 respectively, cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and various
reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associates thereto. The
Group has a target gearing ratio of nil-30% determined
as the proportion of net debt to equity. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will maintain
its gearing ratio through the payment of dividends, new
share issues as well as issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt.

The gearing ratio at the end of reporting period was as

follows:

Debt &%

Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY
Net debt (ER R

Equity B

Net debt to equity ratio

(EUGOER RN Fada

EXRERER

AEBEREANBRAEESER 2T
BRRekn RANEBEREL ERT
By WERBCRE R - AR B EE R REF
ML B o

AEEEARBERERY (BEME28R
2ONRIWBEZRITREMEERARLR
B) RELBREFENRARREB AR
s (BRERTRARZEME) -

ARARERTE R ERNRE a5
EXZREARANEARR NEEZ
BERERNABLERTEI0% REKF
BB HPEE - REESZHER
& AEEERRERE BTN E
THEGREERFEKEFEELARE
FL & o

RERALEEB 2 EREBEBL RO T:

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHExT THET

15,250 95,826

(78,370) (45,667)

NilZ 50,159

479,483 446,306

NilZ 11%
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets MBEE

Loans and receivables BERRERER (BE
(including cash and cash ReRBLEEY)
equivalents)

Available-for-sale investment AHHERE

Financial liabilities MBEE

Financial liabilities measured at RBHEKATHEZ
amortised cost BB E

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
financial assets included in trade and other receivables,
bills receivable, amounts due from related parties, cash
and cash equivalents; financial liabilities included in
trade and other payables, bank and other borrowings,
amounts due to related parties and promissory notes.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in the respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. Management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

Several subsidiaries in the Group are exposed to
foreign currency risk primarily arising from foreign
currency bank deposits, other receivables and
trade and other payables.

IR

(a) BIHTEAEF

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT TET
111,716 83,783
69 69
52,123 126,477

(b) HERBEZEHEZERKE

AEBETZ2MBTABEFTARBKE
FERF R EMEKIERR  BREE-
EUWEEALZFR ReERREE
BYMHBEE  fFARNE BERK
REMEMER RITEEMER
FERN BB AL RIARALRIR 2875
BE-MEHBITAFEREENE
BE-AHEZEMBEITAZARER
migEE (HMNER R LA ERR) =
ERBREREE SRR - T XHIR
BitEERzBR - EEEEEER
B E AR R K A UREL
R

™5 & b
() EBEXmEpE

REE % FHE QB EESINER
B ERRBINERTER K
i U BR R R A & 5 BRI L
il P& A R 3K
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(M)

Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s significant
monetary assets and liabilities which are
denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities
at the end of reporting period are as follows:

HK$ BT

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation
of HK$. The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% (2010: 5%) appreciation and
depreciation in the functional currency of the
relevant subsidiaries (RMB) against the above
foreign currency. 5% (2010: 5%) represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of reporting
period for a 5% (2010: 5%) change in the
exchange rates. A strengthening of the functional
currency of the relevant subsidiaries against the
above foreign currency would give rise to the
following impact to the Group’s pre-tax results for
the year and vice versa.

6.

B TR (&)
(b) HERBEZEHERKE (£)
mIERE (&)

() ExmEp(E)
HEZ2WBHEER  XEE LA
BEBEERGEERNIN G
FECEREBEERABECER
HEWT:

Liabilities Assets
=R BE
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT THER FAT
24,201 48,351 14 124

AEETEEEET 2 EXKE
Rk T REFIIAE B BB E
RAMEEE (ARE) R Lit
SNETHEREZESS (ZE—F
F:5%) ZHEE 5% (—F—
TF:5%) REEEHIMNERE X
FIRE IR A BB E) 2 7 1h - B
EnitERERABEZINE
BEERHER IRSE2RMEE

ALAERSY% (ZEBE—FF:5%)
ZEHARRE - WHEBHER

BITIRE E W LA SN FHE -
HEEBRRAMXEELENANTE
B RZ2IA-
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(M)

(ii)

Currency risk (Continued)

Improvement in results FEXEELH
for the year
- HK$ — BT

In the management’s opinion, the above sensitivity
analysis is not necessarily representative of the
inherent foreign currency risk as the exposure at
year end does not reflect the exposure during the
year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is not exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to its fixed-rate borrowing
(see Note 28 for details) as they are carried at
amortised cost. The Group currently does not
have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

The Group is not exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk as the interest rate of borrowing is fixed
(see Note 28 for details).

6. BIITH (&)

(b) HERBEEEERKE (&)

mEER (&)

() SEEE (&)

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THET
1,209 2,411

(ii)

EEERR BRERAEHZ
B 3 A R BR AN AT 2 [
B M EASRBRESTETRE
[E A SN [ Bz

T m B

HRESEE (FERME28)
A SHR A DIE - AR E B A
HETEREEREQXIFEMER
i o AN 5% [ 3R B 3 4 ) 3R S O B
KoM BEEEEZENXEAR
VR BEEBE AEAMNE
R

HREEZFRAE TR §
NEB IS ETMIESREFER
% (15 R M E28) -
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. I IT R (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies b) BERBEEZERERKE (/&)

(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) mIERE (&)
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued) (i) FIEREE (E)
Sensitivity analysis BRAE AT
At 31st December, 2011, it is estimated that N—_E——F+-_A=+—8"

a general increase/decrease of 50 basis
points in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would increase/decrease the
Group’s profit for the year and decrease/
increase accumulated losses by approximately
HK$380,000 (2010: HK$110,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for the Group’s variable-rate bank balances
at the end of reporting period (2010: the exposure
to interest rates for the Group’s variable-rate
bank balances and variable-rate borrowings).
The analysis is prepared assuming these financial
instruments outstanding at the end of reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. The
50 basis point increase/decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the period
until the next annual reporting date. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2010.

M F R 28 58T #H50%F -
MATEEMEHRBEFTTE &
SAAEEFANEFE SN
MO RBEEEBERD G
AN #1380,000% 7T (=T — T &
110,000 7T ) °

ERBRESFTCRAKERZ
BRMBEER OFBRITER (=
T-TF ARAKREZFEER
THHEFBEEERENXE
B ) MEETE ° MR sz 0 TS RAR %
ENEFRPEERRARTTERZEH
BTARBEFEDERITRE:-
50 FHLFR THILIERESH
BEET—FHAHLHENGE
AREMNXZBEFGE  —F—FF
Z M TR A R R HETT -
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. I IT R (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BEREEZEFEZEREE ()

(Continued)
Credit risk FERRE
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its AREBZEERBRETEREHEKRE

trade and other receivables, amounts due from related
parties and bank balances. Management has a credit
policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks
are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customers as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customers operate. Ongoing
credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition
of trade customers. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

In addition to credit risk on trade and other receivables,
the Group is also exposed to concentration of
credit risk through advances to related parties of
HK$3,590,000 (2010: HK$3,172,000). Because of
its significance, management has regular liaison with
the counterparty to understand its financial position
and to identify any early sign of potential problems.
Should any potential default risk arise, the Group’s
management will take prompt actions to safeguard the
Group’s assets.

In addition, the Group had concentration of credit
risk on its liquid funds as 99% (2010: 99%) of bank
balances were placed with five (2010: five) banks.
However, the credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

VLt &Eﬁﬂﬁfﬂkﬁﬁ CEMEEA
THRAMRITESR BEEECDRIRE
ERER HEBERAKSEMAEZA
BIEERR -

FhE U B F AR AR K H e Uk BR R
='%EEA$EL—E%$Z%ﬁ
BHEEZENEEFN G - BENEE
FIRE P XN B EIR IR 2 4 MR
MRz ARZEBEEFPZARE
BREPEEME ZEBRE -
SEENEHEPZMBRRETH
BEEFGE -AEERETERER
Y B # am ©

B FE W B 5 BR 3R K H B W BR 5k 2
FEERBIN REBITERBEA T
#.323,590,0008 L (= E —Z F:
3 172,000 L) MEIH £ R EE R
cHREBHEA WMEEETFHER
SEFHBUT BRH BB R R
ERBEMBNTEK WM EEME
FHERER AASEEEREES R
ERTBRERNEEEE -

BESN - BRAEEII% (ZT—FTF:

99% ) RITHEREFRREM (ZF—F
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. I IT R (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the recognised of borrowings as well as the
cash flows from operating activities.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities and derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows.

THE GROUP
Liquidity table
Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
mE¥H
ERFE
%
2011 —E—-F%
Non-derivative financial liabilities JE 674 Bt % & &
Trade and other payables EREZRRREMERER -
Amounts due to related parties ENEZEATHE
- Amount due to an associate ~ER—RBEDARE -
— Amount due to a director -EN-2EEHHE -
Secured other borrowing BHEALMEE
- fixed rate -8 8.47

(b) HBERBEZEERHE (&)

REE @

ERRBECRRK NEBEEZEY
MBEEERARRASAEEZER
HES RS RBASFEY LWHE
RenENSNTE -BEERTE
EZHRABRARBEEBZRENR

=
E-°

TRFIAKETEFBABRIT
EMBREZNBREONEMFEBE-
ZRRBEAEBARAREZRTR
M BRABEZAURBRSRER
2 BRMNERAEZRAERE-

EE

HEBEZ X
On Carrying
demand or Total amount
less than 1-3 3 months undiscounted as at
1 month months to1year cashflows 31.12.2011
R
—E--F
BERY KRR +=A
SR 123 MEAZE Re Er=f
1188 iR 15 RELE ZREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TER TER TER TER

11,071 128 305 11,504 11,504
500 - - 500 500
24,869 = = 24,869 24,869

- - 16,542 16,542 15,250

36,440 128 16,847 53,415 52,123
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. I IT R (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HEEBEZEBERKE (#&)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESRER (&
THE GROUP (Continued) AEE (&)
Liquidity table (Continueq) HEBELE (E)

Weighted On Carrying
average  demand or Total amount
effective less than 1-3 3 months  undiscounted as at

interest rate 1 month months to1year  cashflows 31.12.2010
i

“Z-%F

RERY KB +=A

MEFH DR EX] MEAZE Re =+—H
YRS 18R EA 15 MELE ZEEE

%  HK$000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
TAT TAL TATL TATL TAT

2010 —E-Z%
Non-derivative financial liabilites ~ £ HBEEE
Trade and other payables EREFRRREMEMRR - 14,841 159 3,704 18,704 18,704
Amounts due to related parties EBEEALHE

— Amount due to an associate ~ER-RBEDRAFE - 500 - - 500 500

~ Amount due to a director ~EN—ZEEHA - 8,270 - - 8,270 8,270
Secured other borrowing BHEAEMEE

- fixed rate -E& 8.47 - - 15,869 15,869 14,630
Unsecured bank borrowings BERRIEE

- variable rate —%8 7.79 11,824 - 12,427 24,251 23,600
Unsecured other borrowing ERRAMES

- fixed rate -EE 15.60 - - 12,360 12,360 11,800
Promissory notes SRS

- current — BN &g 8.72 - - 49,691 49,691 45,796

35,435 169 94,051 129,645 123,300
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. BIEITH(Z)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies b) BERBEEZEHERKE (/&)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESRER (&
THE COMPANY b NN
Liquidity table HEELF
Weighted On Carrying
average  demand or Total amount
effective less than 1-3 3 months undiscounted as at
interest rate 1 month months to1year cashflows 31.12.2011
R®
—B--f
RERY REB +=A
&Y DR 123 MMAE B¢ =t-H
BEBRH= 1188 faA 15 REAE ZREE

% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TR TERL TERL TERL

2011 —E--F

Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ FfT£HBEE

Other payables HipERERR - 1,199 - - 1,199 1,199
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERNBARNE - 30,225 = - 30,225 30,225
Amount due to a director BN—ZEEHE - 22,977 - - 22,977 22,977

54,401 =

54,401 54,401
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. I IT R (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HEEBEZEBERKE (#&)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESRR (&)
THE COMPANY (Continued) KRATE (&)
Liquidity table (Continueq) REEERK (&)

Weighted On Carrying
average  demand or Total amount
effective less than 1-3 3 months  undiscounted as at

interest rate 1 month months to1year  cashflows 31.12.2010
“Z-%F

RERY KB +=A

MEFH DR EX] MEAZE Re =t+-H
YRS 18R EA 15 MELE ZEEE

%  HK$000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
TAT TAL TATL TATL TAT

2010 —E-Z%
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ £ HBEE
Other payables Hit AR - 1,148 - - 1,148 1,148
Amounts due to subsidiaries B L RFE - 6,520 - - 6,520 6,520
Amount due to a director ERN—2EZHE - 8,037 - - 8,037 8,037
Promissory notes ESES

- current —Eng 8.72 - - 49,691 49,691 45,796

15,705 - 49,691 65,396 61,501

Finance guarantees issued BELMBER

- maximum amount guaranteed -RERERE 11,824 - 12,427 24,251 =

(c) Fair values (c) R-FlE

The directors of the Company consider that the KRR EERAE VBKEERTEE
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial BRGE B HRERANIREEK A=
liabilities measured at amortised cost in the JEZEFEEmEEEAFEEMES -

consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. EER
(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of (a) TEHSBRAIZHS Sz 18

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets
and liabilities

The Group determines its operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the chief operating
decision-makers (the “CODM”) that are used to make
strategic decisions.

During the year ended 31st December, 2011, the
Group has two reportable segments. The segments
are managed separately as each business offers
different products and services and requires different
business strategies. The following summary describes
the operations in each of the Group’s reportable
segments:

e  Mobile phone business

e  Mining business

Inter-segment transactions are priced with reference
to prices charged to external parties for similar order.
Corporate expenses, corporate assets and corporate
liabilities are not allocated to the reportable segments
as they are not included in the measure of the
segments’ profit, segments’ assets and segments’
liabilities that are used by the CODM for assessment of
segment performance.

#w BERBEBZHLE

AEBEARHELRBREZ LIRS
BARE([ETBEZERRE])EMN
ZmEBEREENE

HE_Z——F+_A=+—HILF
B -AEEHEAMEAT2HDE AR
EXBRHETAERAMRE XL E
FERDTRAMNEBRE QLD
MODHEE - ATHBHRANEE
EEAN2HROBLE:

. BRHEEEH

o RIEE®

DR R B2 BRI E B LR E
FANER A L WERZ BIREE - X1
At bREERGCERELLE
BREFATIZZERREFGHOBR
ARER 2R RAN D EMEERD
MEEAN WELRARIEESAZ

Wy ap e
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DHER (&)
(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of (a) /7 LSRRI
reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets m BEREEZHAE (&)
and liabilities (Continued)
For the year ended 31st December, 2011 BE-_E——F+=-HA=+—BHLt*=E
E
Mobile
phone Mining
business business Total
BEBER
ES REERK wet
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THExT FExT FExT
Reportable segment revenue REIINAEP
from external customers Al 2|y B 1,764,271 1,591 1,765,862
Reportable segment profit/(loss) 7] 2 ¥k 5 B &
/S (E5#8) 34,951 (6,651) 28,300
Loss on disposal of plant HEMRE R&EEE
and equipment 2 948 950
Depreciation and amortisation T K g 1,228 655 1,883
Write down of inventories 7 & MU 5,944 = 5,944
Reversal of write down of FE MR
inventories (6,162) - (6,162)
Reportable segment assets AI2RoHBEE 269,673 466,251 735,924
Additions to non-current assets JERBEERE 229 3,574 3,803
Reportable segment liabilities AZmoHBE (87,852) (142,222) (230,074)
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. SIER (£F)
(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of (a) /7 LSRRI
reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets m BEREEZHAE (&)
and liabilities (Continued)
2011
HK$’000
FET

Revenue W=
Reportable segment revenue and A2 B E KR A W

consolidated revenue 1,765,862
Profit before income tax R FiT 18 B4 A % R
Reportable segment profit Al 2 5 &0 A 28,300
Interest income B A 1,385
Impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill 7t i Z #E 32 2 el (B 5 18 (2,910)
Miscellaneous loss MIEEE (245)
Corporate expenses TEIH (8,862)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary Hj’%—ﬁliﬁgﬁﬂz%lé 2
Share of result of an associate DI —RKEERB 2 EE 5
Finance costs B & AR (6,535)
Consolidated profit before income tax b TS 8L AT 47 & i K 11,140
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AR HEE 735,924
Unallocated corporate assets ROBEEEE

— Investment in an associate ——REEQARZILE 3,800

— Others —EAth 3,024
Consolidated total assets HREEERE 742,748
Liabilities =R
Reportable segment liabilities ARy HarE 230,074
Unallocated corporate liabilities AoEEGCEARE 33,191
Consolidated total liabilities e BEARE 263,265
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEEE ()

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of (a) TEHRSHBRITZEHS Wz 18
w BERBMEZHE (&)

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets

and liabilities (Continued)

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 BE_Z—ZTF+_A=+—8L*F
i3
Mobile
phone Mining
business business Total
BEEE
Ey R @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T FET
Reportable segment revenue from R B M7 & F 7] 2 )
external customers Pol- i & 2,528,868 15,252 2,544,120
Reportable segment profit Al 23D F i F 27,710 6,150 33,860
Loss on write-off of plant and WM S R E 2 BB
equipment 2 - 2
Depreciation and amortisation & M 5 1,058 1,156 2,214
Allowance for trade and other B Z S8R &M E b
receivables JE W BR R 2 B - 2,852 2,852
Write down of inventories VEN=E 9,486 - 9,486
Reversal of write down of & & UR =
inventories (2,871) - (2,871)
Reportable segment assets A2/ EE 407,642 452,394 860,036
Additions to non-current assets EREBIEERE 3,429 139 3,568
Reportable segment liabilities AEZWmaHBE (225,115) (133,752) (358,867)
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEEE ()
(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of (a) TZHEZTHBRITZHSH Wz 1B
reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets wm BERBEZHAE (&)

and liabilities (Continued)

2010
HK$’000
FAET
Revenue Y 25
Reportable segment revenue and A2Wm 5 HlERirs W
consolidated revenue 2,544,120
Profit before income tax B Fir 18 B4 A s F
Reportable segment profit A 23D 5 F 33,860
Interest income A2 A 317
Miscellaneous income HMIEUA 4,462
Corporate expenses ﬁ%i i (9,685)
Share of result of an associate DIE—REE QN F) 2 ¥EE 444
Finance costs & A (11,658)
Consolidated profit before income tax BrFT 8 BRI 47 & i K 17,740
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AIEWHHEE 860,036
Unallocated corporate assets Fa) HE&%QF
— Investment in an associate ——XBERRZRE 4,463
— Others —HAth 2,882
Consolidated total assets IR EERE 867,381
Liabilities 8&
Reportable segment liabilities AEHRHHBE 358,867
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROMEEEE
— Promissory notes — AR R 45,796
— Others —HAth 16,412

Consolidated total liabilities e BEARE 421,075
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(b) Geographical information
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During 2011 and 2010, the Group’s operations and
non-current assets are situated in the PRC in which all

of its revenue was derived.

(c)

Information about major customer

During 2011 and 2010, there was no customer with
whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s

revenue.

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Write back of amount due to a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary

Translation reserve released upon
deregistration of a subsidiary

Exchange loss

Reversal of impairment loss recognised in
respect of trade and other receivables

(Impairment loss)/reversal of impairment
loss recognised in respect of club
memberships

Allowance for trade and other receivables

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
goodwill

Loss on disposal/write-off of plant and
equipment

BOEMN—FKHB A
FEFE I IR R KR

B S — KM B A Rl
BB

I 3 518

LB E 5 R K E A
& W AR R e R 2 BB
EEEE

IEMERRERL
CREREER) RE
EEEE

FE 5 B AR e H At FE UL
RN B

L ERER ZBEREE
&SRR iR A
Z B8R

DEER (E)
(b) i EH

RZE——FR_E—FTF KAEE
ZEBRIERBDEEHMRFE M
EEWEEREFE-

(c) BBHETEEFZEH
RZE——FR_T—ZTF TER
FRZRGEAREBRZEEBIBI0% °

HEMwhBEREE

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
THExT FAT
= 7,862

- 3,941
(675) (77)
641 397
(122) 11
- (2,852)
(2,910) -
(950) 2)
(4,016) 9,280
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9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BB A&
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&T FET
Interests on: FEBR:

Bank and other borrowings wholly HARRAFRNEBEEEZ
repayable within five years BITREMEE 2,624 6,141
Promissory notes TS 3,895 4,263
Bills discounting AR 16 1,192
Convertible loan notes TBmRERER - 62
6,535 11,658

10. INCOME TAX CREDIT/EXPENSE 10. FTIBHIE R X H

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHETT
The amount of income tax (credit)/expense &2 & 2 E WA K Z FT15
in the consolidated statement of (B®) /XZHe®EE:
comprehensive income represents:
Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax ENHAF: — B> ¥ FT15H
(“EIT"): ([ BER])
— provision for the year —FEEE - 2,237
— over provision in respect of prior year — — B FEBEEEE (15) -
Deferred tax (Note 32) EFEFRLIE (FF7E32) = (133)
Income tax (credit)/expense FrS® (%) X i (15) 2,104

RR(EB)BBESERA AR ([RE L
B EEBEZRBRESERAR ([ LE
ER])RPE EEINSBRIHEKY - &
KEMBERERMZEERAR ([ZKE8
IS 3 | ) P H B BRI A B e (R AR S o [ It -
BHE_Z——F+-_A=+—HIFE"
ZETRBNBEARIAIZHBERLEMEN
TRE24% (ZFE—FTF :22%) - = A HHE
BEARAR ([EREEZE]) NP BEKL -
EI25% (ZE—ZF :25% ) 2R EFT1S
T A0 AN FA o

Fortune (Shanghai) International Trading Co., Ltd (“Fortune
Shanghai”’) and E/8&R=ZEEE 5 HBR 2 a (“Shanghai
Yuanjia”) were established in Shanghai Waigaogiao Free
Trade Zone, the PRC; and KB EREBAREEARA
Al (“Zhuhai Reminda”) was established in Zhuhai Special
Economic Zone, the PRC. Accordingly, for the year ended
31st December, 2011, these PRC subsidiaries were entitled
to a preferential EIT rate of 24% (2010: 22%). & £ #8350
% ER A A (“Sifa Mining”) was established in the PRC and
subject to the EIT rate of 25% (2010: 25%).
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INCOME TAX CREDIT/EXPENSE (Continued)

No provision has been made for income tax as the Group
did not have any estimated assessable profits during the

year.

The income tax (credit)/expense for the year can be
reconciled to the profit before income tax per the

e PR MR

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE—_F——F+_A=+—HIFE

consolidated statement of comprehensive income as

follows:

Profit before income tax

Tax charge at the domestic income tax
rate of 24% (2010: 22%) (Note)

Tax effect of share of result of an associate

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Utilisation of deductible temporary
differences and tax losses previously
not recognised

Over-provision in respect of prior year

Effect of different tax rates of group
entities operating in other jurisdictions

Tax (credit)/expense for the year

10. FRIBBE R X H (&)

R AR BN A EE W B A 2 ER
Biog A - B LT IS TR IR A -

REFZHEH (Ke) THAGEE2E
WAERZBRFTEHRANRFEENT
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FET
K P15 0 A 5 A 11,140 17,740
WA PTG T E24%
TE-TF:22%)
FEZHERE (M) 2,674 3,903
DE—RBERNTEEZ
MG (1) (98)
TAIHIBRAE 2B E
3,414 4,428
BARBWA 2 RS2
(165) (1,757)
RERBEEBB MG TE 3,693 1,539
BABTRERZTNB
URERBLBEEE
(10,505) (6,016)
BAFEHBERE (15) —
B e AR EE 2
SEHERBTRABERzZE 890 238
FEHEBE(ER) X H (15) 2,237
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10. INCOME TAX CREDIT/EXPENSE (Continued) 10. FIERIESR T H (&)

At the end of reporting period, the Group had estimated
unused tax losses of approximately HK$247,231,000 (2010:
HK$231,727,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
the estimated unused tax losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax
losses are losses of approximately HK$150,303,000 (2010:
HK$132,262,000) that may be carried forward for a period
of five years from their respective year of origination. Other
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of reporting period, the Group also had
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$25,241,000 (2010: HK$69,612,000). No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

Note: The domestic income tax rate represents the preferential
PRC EIT rate where the Group’s operations are substantially
based.

RERPBLEER - AEBE BT AE
EIMRR G F < @RS A HEEIR
#) /247,231,000 L (Z T — T F:
231,727,000/ 7T ) © F A A T 0 oK 2R 0%
R - L BT AT Z M ABAZH
BEEBBRARERIEEE 5T ARBRE
A58 2 B 18 49/5150,303,00008 7T (=&
— T 4F 132,262,000 ) - Al BEL S
FEREENT -HMBEERBEE -

RERPLEER AEBIAAAINHY
B 2 %8 £925,241,0008 7L (—Z T — T4
69,612,000/ 7T) c B N R A gL & & 7]
MBI EREEANEEERT RN - R
ERZEUNPEREZEEREERIES
Eo

FiEE: AMETIS BB R A B AN S £
A EETECEFAERBE.
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11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 11. EEBF
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&T FiET
Profit for the year has been arrived FEEMND R :
at after charging:
Auditor’s remuneration % BT B & 855 821
Cost of inventories recognised as expense R BT 2 HFERA 1,704,539 2,479,356
Write down of inventories 17 & MU 5,944 9,486
Reversal of write down of inventories 5B #Mus e (6,162) (2,871)
Depreciation of plant and equipment BEREE2TE 1,896 1,831
Amortisation of mining right PR - 533
Staff costs 8 T KA
— directors’ emoluments (Note 12) —EEME (MIsE12) 3,975 3,658
— other staff costs —H B TRA 13,762 11,606
— retirement benefit scheme contribution  — 3R /K48 7 51 2] 7%
(excluding directors) (TBEES) 2,581 2,390
20,318 17,654
and after crediting: S A=EIWNE
Service income from provision of logistics 12 ¥ M S E R <
and promotion services AR 75 Uz A 3,919 3,118
Interest income B U A 1,385 317

Government grants RS 78 B 1,183 =
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12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 12. EEM £
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven O ENTFEMN (ZE—FF: \[1)E
(2010: eight) directors were as follows: Ex@AZMEWT
Chang Wong
Lau Fung Lo Wing Lit
Siu Ying Luo 0i Ip, Wing Seng, Chor,  ChenYi
(“Mr. Lau”) XiZhi  Alfonso Yat Victor Alexis Gang  Wang Yu Total
g0 E

(rgxs)) BBz RB% EXE BAB ENY  RAE £ @it
HK§'000  HK$O00 ~ HK'000  HK§'000  HKEOOD  HK'000  HKS'000  HKE'000  HK$'000
TEL TR TER  TET TR TERT  TET  TAR  TER

(Note )
D)
2011 E--F
Fees ok - - 100 - 100 100 80 - 380
Salaries and allowances FeREN 1,667 172 - - - - - 866 2,705
Performance related incentive KRR ZE) AL
bonuses (Note i (B zi) 750 83 - - - - - - 833
Retirement benefit scheme  RAEFIHEI 5
contribution 2 18 - - - - - 37 57
Total emoluments Heem 2,419 273 100 - 100 100 80 903 3,975
2010 —E-%F
Fees ok - - 100 37 100 100 80 - 47
Salaries and allowances e R2s 1,698 143 - - - - - 725 2,566
Performance related incentive &3 18 B TEAT
bonuses (Note i (Bt zi) 600 64 - - - - - = 664
Retirement benefit scheme  RAAEFIHEI 5
contribution 2 9 - - - - - - 11
Total emoluments e 2,300 216 100 37 100 100 80 725 3,658
Notes: B sE -
() Lo Wing Yat was resigned on 30th September, 2010. () EXERR-_F-—FTFAA=+HEE-
(i)  The performance related incentive bonuses for 2011 and i) =B —FR-F-EFFEZIRAMBHA
44 e ES == ==
2010 was determined with reference to performance of the REIEARSERRERBETE

Group.
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13. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2010: two) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in Note
12 above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2010:
three) individuals were as follows:

¥ MoERR
ERREFIE B R

Salaries and allowances
Retirement benefit scheme contribution

Their emoluments were within the following band:

Up to HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 7T LA A
None of the five highest paid individuals waived any
emoluments in current and prior years.

During the years ended 31st December, 2011 and 2010,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals, including directors, as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office.

13. EEM S

AEBRUZSHFALFR ERMA (=
T-ZF WMU)RARAESR A2 H
R EXHEI2RAREZEMA R T =
(ZE—ZF Zf)ALZHEWT:

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THET
1,724 1,737
(63) 165
1,661 1,902

ZEREZMENFTI&EE:

2011 2010
Number of Number of
employees employees

EE®E EE#E
3 3

RAFEREFA AfUZRSHALHE
MEREAEAHE -

BE_T— —Fk-F-FTF+=A
St HLEFE - AEESERTUER
FALT (BRES)IMNETAME  FRHE
BRFMAREMAREEE 2 S E
R IE -
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14.

15.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during current and prior
years, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of
reporting period (2010: Nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of earnings per share for the year is based
on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$15,922,000 (2010: HK$14,875,000) and
the weighted average number of 821,663,442 shares in
issue during the year (2010: 820,489,274 shares in issue).

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not
assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share
options as the exercise price of those options is higher
than the average market price for shares for both 2011 and
2010.

14. R 2

RAFEREFA  HERMNSIBRERS
BE2HMYAE B URIFE R K E RS
(ZF—FF :8|)-

15. BIR&EF|

FRNERBMNDIBBEFARRAEBAZ
JE 15 %% 115,922,000 7T ( — T — T 4F:
14,875,000/ 7T ) R F RN BE 1T 2 N
HE S 1 $1821,663,44208 ( — T — T 4F:
820,489,274 B BT IR D ) 5T & ©

HR -ZE——F RS -—TFEREZ]T
FEESREOFOTE S ESREE
BN EBRRITEARBRITE ZBK
-
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16. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

COST

At 1st January, 2010
Exchange adjustments
Additions

Write-off

At 31st December, 2010
Exchange adjustments
Additions

Disposals

At 31st December, 2011

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At 1st January, 2010

Exchange adjustments

Provided for the year

Eliminated on write-off

At 31st December, 2010
Exchange adjustments
Provided for the year
Eliminated on disposal

At 31st December, 2011

CARRYING VALUE
At 31st December, 2011

At 31st December, 2010

CES
R=F-FF-A—A
EXBE

#10

3

R-F-F£+=A=t-8
BB

1

s

RZZE——%+-A=1+—H

REHE
RZZE—ZF—-f—H
5 A%
FERE
i S B 4R

R-ZE-FF+-A=1+—H
(& 5 3%
FERE
T B 3R
RZZT——F+ZA=+—H

REE
R=ZZE——%+-A=1+—H

R=F-SF+=-A=+—H

16. MER&RHE

The Group
+%8
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor  Construction
improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
&
HEXE  LERRB "E TREIRE aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT TET FTET FTET
7,405 3,375 1,684 - 12,464
291 97 - - 388
745 285 2,538 - 3,568
(298) 9 - - (307)
8,143 3,748 4,222 - 16,113
288 108 108 - 504
939 681 593 1,633 3,846
(1,373) (44) - - (1,417)
7,997 4,493 4,923 1,633 19,046
2,510 1,678 1,675 - 5,763
99 40 5 - 144
892 660 279 - 1,831
(298) (7) - - (305)
3,203 2,371 1,859 - 7,433
125 63 23 - 211
749 525 622 - 1,896
(319 (36) = = (355)
3,758 2,923 2,504 - 9,185
4,239 1,570 2,419 1,633 9,861
4,940 1,377 2,363 - 8,680
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17. MINING RIGHT 17. BRIERE

The Group
AEE
HK$’'000
FABT
COST A
At 1st January, 2010 R-ZZE—ZFF—HA—H 415,840
Exchange adjustments bE 5 38 & 18,400
At 31st December, 2010 R—E—ZEF+=-_A=+—H 434,240
Exchange adjustments b 5 P& 18,400
At 31st December, 2011 RZE——F+=ZHA=+—H 452,640
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT Ziti#issi RimE
At 1st January, 2010 R-_ZE—ZFF—H—H -
Exchange adjustments ME 3, 8 B 24
Amortisation provided for the year FNFTRE 533
At 31st December, 2010 RZE—ZEF+=—A=+—H 557
Exchange adjustments M 3 38 & 23
Amortisation provided for the year FNFHR#H =
At 31st December, 2011 RZE——F+=—A=+—H 580
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 31st December, 2011 RZE—F+=—A=+—H 452,060
At 31st December, 2010 R-_E—ZEE+=-_B=+—8H 433,683

The mining right represents the right of Sifa Mining to
conduct mining activities in the location of Huangshi in
Hubei in the PRC. The mining right is amortised using
the units of production method based on the proven and
probable mineral reserves. However, the mining operating
permit issued to the Group by Department of Land and
Resources of Hubei Province (it A B £ & JREE) is only
for a term of 5 years from 25th September, 2007 to 25th
September, 2012, though it is eligible for renewal thereafter.
In the opinion of the directors, the application for renewal
is procedural and the Group should be able to renew its
mining operation permit without significant costs, until all
the proven and probable minerals have been mined.

FIERERSEEENFEILE E AR
B DEREHRARETEERENE
EAERBMEH - A HBENILE R
TEREEFE N RBET A EAHSF - B
—ETLFNAAtTHAHRBRE-_ZT——F
NAZTHBIE-EEEABER EER
R BREEREATREEER  MAE
B A BHARET I EMEEENRA
EEFABERAREEERD 2HARKA
_U:o
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17. MINING RIGHT (Continued)

The exploitation on the first phase was completed in 2010.
In current year, Sifa Mining is moving to a next phase in
development of another mining site exploitation system
and then further exploitation is expected. The management
is exploring all commercially viable opportunities to
maximise the return from this investment including but not
limited to improvement of infrastructure and expansion
into processing of the ore, subject to feasibility study and
availability of funding.

The directors have carefully reviewed the recoverable
amount of the mining right by reference to the professional
valuation as at 31st December, 2011, performed by LCH
(Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited (“LCH”). The recoverable
amount of the mining right was determined by LCH based
on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a 5-year period, and a discount rate
of 16% (2010: 15%). The cash flows beyond the 5-year
period are extrapolated using a steady 3.2% (2010: 2.9%)
growth rate. The key assumptions adopted in the value in
use calculation relate to the renewal of mining operation
permit, estimated reserves, estimated productivity and the
estimated prices of mineral resources.

Based on the above review, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that the recoverable amount of the mining
right is higher than the carrying value of the mining right as
at 31st December, 2011.

At 31st December, 2011, 100,000 tons (2010: 100,000
tons) minerals included in the underlying reserves were
pledged as security for the other borrowings (Note 28).

17. SRBRE (&)

E-BERORARIEEER _Z-ZTFx
BR-MAFE SBEBEBERIEEBD T —
B BRSBUHARRG 2R A FEME
— AR -EEEERMMEEREER
ATHRBAGERSREDR ©%FEE
TEANEEEZNEREBEEAMT -
HERFATHMRERAIAEERME -

BEEZCRENBTHEMARAR ([F5E
TR ZE——FTA=1+—HETH
HEHEYRBEENANE S EIETFAE
o FRIERE A AT YL Bl & B R A B AT AR B AE
REEE FRETRACEEE]E
ZLHEFHBRBEERZI6H (ZE—FF
15% ) QB KM H 2 RS REER - A
FHEZIREREL3.2% (T —TF:
29% ) ZIBE R REHRE -HEFAEEA
REAZEEBEDENREERBEILTA
FHBYWERGHHE BT EEER XA
B1% o

2R LLEE  ARTEFRA  FRER
——Ft-A=t-ANTKELE
BREEEE-

R-E——F+_A=+—H HEHE
7 5100,000M ( =Z —Z 4 : 100,000 )
BECEAEMEE (K F28) 2 EIF &
R o
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18. GOODWILL 18. g &
The Group
AEE
HK$’'000
FABT
COST R
At 1st January, 2010, 31st December, 2010 and RZZE-—FTF—H—A0"
31st December, 2011 —E-ZF+HA=1+—8HK
—E——F+=-A=+—H 192,355
IMPAIRMENT HE
At 1st January, 2010 and 31st December, 2010 RZE—ZEF—A—HE
—E-FF+ZA=+—H 189,445
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE 2,910
At 31st December, 2011 RZE——F+=ZHA=+—H 192,355
CARRYING AMOUNT REE
At 31st December, 2011 R-ZE——F+ZA=+—H =
At 31st December, 2010 RZE—ZEF+=-HA=+—H 2,910

At 31st December, 2010, the carrying amount of the RZEBE—ZFTF+_A=1T—H FA&EH
Group’s goodwill was attributable to the Group’s mobile BRAEREAEBRRTECBHERE
phone retail business in the PRC. The recoverable amount TEEB -ZBESELBMNZATREEEE
of this cash generating unit has been determined based REREEFEEIET ZAEEALKE
on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash BEE AFHMBIESR XI1E10%.2 8
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by BRI ZEeREAA -FEFHE
management covering a five-year period, and a discount BEzETEBRERBERBEHEFEHF=TEN - R
rate of 10%. The key assumption for the value in use ErPHEEEHERAIR EEEE RN
calculation relates to the forecast mobile phones sales. In FRASEBRHEFETEXBH 2 HEHF
determining the forecast mobile phones sales, the directors ERigER 2 EE BN AT B KE
took into account the effects of the keen competition and ERHEEHEBRTEER (DT ERE) -
the slower growth in the mobile phone retail business of the

Group in current year, and extrapolated no growth (i.e. zero

growth rate) in the five-year financial budgets and thereafter.

The directors reassessed the recoverable amount of
goodwill as at 31st December, 2011 by reference to
the value in use calculation with the above estimations
and were of the opinion that the goodwill arising from
the acquisition of mobile phone retail business was not
recoverable. Accordingly, the goodwill was fully impaired
and charged to the profit or loss during the year ended 31st
December, 2011.

R-_E——F+_A=1+—H EFLKS
EFERAEEFER LAFT EFEEZ
ARESE TREVERHEESTEE
BrAEELIRE B R ——F
TZA=+—H BEEL2ERETE K
bi-Endaakin] 530
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. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

Cost of investment in an unlisted associate M 3E FHBtE QAT 2R E

DN
FEIS W BB 1R fE 1

Share of post-acquisition reserves

Particulars of the associate as at 31st December, 2011 and
2010 are set out in Note 41.

Included in the cost of investment in an associate is
goodwill of HK$2,067,000 (2010: HK$2,735,000) arising
on acquisition of the associate in 2007, which is net of
impairment recognised and adjustment to the investment
cost in accordance with profit guarantee provided by the
vendor for the years ended 31st December, 2009 and
2010.

During the year, the Group is entitled to receive a
compensation of HK$668,000 (2010: HK$900,000) in
cash from the vendor in an acquisition of an associate,
Artchief Industries Limited (“Artchief”), carried out in 2007.
The compensation represents the shortfall of the profit
guarantee of Artchief for the year ended 31st December,
2010 (2010: year ended 31st December, 2009). The
compensation was set off with the corresponding goodwill
arising on the acquisition.

—XBEQRTZRE

The Group
rE

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
3,341 4,009
459 454
3,800 4,463

R —FR-F—FF+-A=t—
B2 B4 D A R S 41 o

RZZETLFRE-—REBEEQRMEELEZ
P2 52,067,000/ 7T (B HBR E R E
EREBEEFRBE_STNFR=_FE—F
F+ZA=1+—BLFEAMREZEFR
BAEZRERAAR) (ZE—ZTF:
2,735,000 70) BT AR & AR 2%
B o

FRN AEEBRBR-_ZTLFUE—X
BMENRBEREEARDAA ([E#F])—
HAE 5 668,000 T (Z T —T4F
900,000 L) e mME -FHMEERE
BEE-_Z—TF+-_A=t+—HLHF
E(ZE—ZF :HE-_TTNAFE+=A
=+ —HLEFE)HNRENTEEZE B
A BRI BE P EE A RO MR FE P B R 8 o
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19. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 19. — XEENTFZ2RE (&)
The summarised financial information in respect of the NEHALSEL  KAEEBMRIFHS AT Z
associate held by the Group at the end of reporting period BHRERHENT

is set out below:

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Total assets BEBE 4,055 5,018
Total liabilities BEEEE (589) (1,562)
Net assets BEFE 3,466 3,456
Group’s share of net assets of associate 7N £2 & JE {5 B & A 7
BETE 1,733 1,728
Revenue Wz 27,844 37,611
Profit for the year &F & 5 A 10 887
Group’s share of result of an associate ~ ZN& [H fE(E — KB & R 7
for the year FEEE 5 444
20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. 8 A Rl =
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&T T T
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRR D - FAA 52,721 50,577
Amounts due from subsidiaries A ENEIE$ 620,870 640,337
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAST B B A R 5 IA (30,225) (6,520)
643,366 684,394
Less: allowance of impairment BB (620,870) (640,337)

22,496 44,057
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20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continuea)

21.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand. Accumulated allowance
of impairment for amounts due from subsidiaries of
HK$620,870,000 (2010: HK$640,337,000) had been
recognised up to 31st December, 2011 because the related
recoverable amounts were estimated to be less than their
respective carrying amounts.

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 40.
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

Available-for-sale investment comprises:

Unlisted securities: FELEMES:
Equity securities & A 3%

This represents a 1.21% (2010: 1.21%) interest in unlisted
equity securities issued by a private entity incorporated in
Hong Kong, which is engaged in provision of computer
technology services in Hong Kong. This investment is
measured at cost less impairment at the end of reporting
period because the range of reasonable fair values
estimates is so significant that the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that its fair value cannot be measured
reliably. The Group does not intend to dispose of it in the
near future.

20. B RARIER (£)

21.

JEUKI B AR KRB AERT T ERA
BREREE - AREBEITRE S BETA
LPREZENEEE BUHE QR ZFE
#) 2 518 (B 8 #5620,870,000/8 7T (—ZT—
T :640,337,0008 L) ER - ——F
+ZA=F+—HA®R-

FEAS BT B

N
mERER

AIRESEEM T ERE

TEMBARFIRHNMEL0 -

AHHERE
AHEERERRE:
The Group
TEE

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
69 69

BT —RREB ML 2 FAE BT
TELETBRAFSZ1.21% (ZE—FF:
1.21% ) s o Z BRI B BIRMEE BT
R - ZERERSHRPLE BIRK AT
BRBENE REARGTEERAFEZE
EBEX ARFEZRAATFETEASE
AE-AEEEENCHABELE-
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22. CLUB MEMBERSHIPS 20 BFieE
The Group
rEE
HK$’000
FHET
coSsT R
At 1st January, 2010 RZZE—ZEF—H—H 1,371
Exchange adjustments bE 5 38 B 9
At 31st December, 2010 and 1st January, 2011 RZE—ZEF+_A=+—HK
—E——F—H—H 1,380
Exchange adjustments ME 5 38 & 9
At 31st December, 2011 R-_E——F+_A=+—H 1,389
IMPAIRMENT R
At 1st January, 2010 R_E-—FF—H—H 13
Reversal of impairment loss recognised BRI EEE D (11)
Exchange adjustments [E 2
At 31st December, 2010 and 1st January, 2011 RZE—ZEF+_A=+—HK
—E——%—H—H 4
Impairment loss recognised for the year FEERREZEE 122
Exchange adjustments ME 3, 5 B -
At 31st December, 2011 RZE——F+=ZA=+—H 126
CARRYING AMOUNT FREE
At 31st December, 2011 R-E——F+_A=+—H 1,263
At 31st December, 2010 R-EBE—FTF+_-_A=+—H 1,376

Club memberships are stated at cost less any identified
impairment loss. For the purpose of impairment testing
on club memberships, the recoverable amount has been
determined based on fair value less costs to sell. The fair
value less costs to sell is the second-hand market price less
cost of disposal.

BT e AR AR B R (E R 1R 5
fReBEMERBERRER  FTIREEE
BAFEREEKAEE - A FEREE
AR = F TS ER M EKA



23.

24.

—2——F% |

PEREZEREBRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR MR

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE—_F——F+_A=+—HIFE

INVENTORIES

Inventories comprise finished goods in:

Mobile phones business
Mining business

BHTEEH
RRER

Included in the cost of inventories sold for the year ended

31st December, 2011 are write down of inventories with an
aggregate balance of HK$5,944,000 (2010: HK$9,486,000),
and reversal of write down of inventories of HK$6,162,000
(2010: HK$2,871,000) which was caused by the increase in

the estimated realisable value.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
Less: accumulated allowance

Value-added-tax receivables
Rebates receivable
Prepayments to suppliers
Other receivables and deposits
Less: accumulated allowance

Trade and other receivables

FEUE 5 AR X
B REH B

FEWR B

& 45 B 40 3R 1]

BN B R RIA
HAt U IR R M
B REH R

FEWE 5 Bk &
H b 8 U R R

The Group

rEH
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET TAET
132,365 185,404
- 1,751
132,365 187,155

BHE-_ZT——F+_-_A=+—HILEEZ
GFEIEENRBEB LR R5,944,000% 7T
— T T4 :9,486,000/ 7T) 2 7 & Ml
B LA Re BB R BT RT B ER (B (B 4L 0 if 7 =
Z1FEMRE6,162,00008 T (— T — T4

2,871,000/ 7T ) °

24. B E 5 IR & H fth FE AR X

The Group
rEH

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
30,066 19,583
(14,083) (14,713)
15,983 4,870
2,756 6,238
11,988 66,126
16,335 71,332
15,962 27,589
(3,130) (8,005)
59,894 173,150
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 24, EWEB SRR EMEWERR (Z)

The Group generally requests for full prepayment from its
trade customers but it also allows certain trade customers
a credit period of 30 to 90 days. The following is an aged

AEB-RERKEHEFBAN A
B TETESEP=TEATRZE
Ef-RERYPEERZRERESERR (B

analysis of trade receivables (net of allowance) presented HMBBE) IZEXEQ0EHELE ZER S TH

based on the invoice date at the end of reporting period: T
The Group
rE

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

0 to 30 days TE=+H 11,412 3,320

31 to 90 days =+—EA+H 2,438 1,423

Over 90 days Bidh+A 2,133 127

15,983 4,870

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses EWNTMHERr AEFBEeTHEAR
FPriEEEE ARATEERE THR
ARTEP BB -REASENBEE
PG REB D BEARBEATARRE 2 B E
SEFRW BB R LA EASRELT-

the potential customer’s credit quality and defines its
credit limits. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed
periodically. Majority of the trade receivables that are neither
past due nor impaired have no default payment history
and good credit rating under the Group’s internal credit
assessment.
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group does not hold any collateral over its trade debts.
It is the Group’s policy that trade debts over 180 days are
fully provided for because historical experience is such that
debts that are past due beyond 180 days are generally
not recoverable. The following is an aged analysis of the
carrying amounts of trade debts that were past due at the
end of reporting period but for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss because management are
of the opinion that the fundamental credit quality of the
customers has not deteriorated:

Over 90 days but less than 180 days
past due

BEALTHERES
—B/A\TH

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts in
respect of trade and other receivables

Balance at beginning of year F R

Exchange adjustments R
Impairment losses recognised for the year F [ 2 2 J8 (E &5 18
Amounts written off as uncollectible 88 7 B K U [B] BR R
Amounts recovered during the year F AU E 2 BRR

Balance at end of year FIREEER

At 31st December, 2011, the Group’s trade and other
receivables of approximately HK$17,213,000 (2010:
HK$17,718,000) were individually determined to be
impaired.

24 ERESRRARAEMEYRER (&)

AEBYERE S ERFETAERR-
AEEOBRAEEIBOEZEHERK
FHEREE RASBTEREHEY
180R A EZ EHBEE AWM - LT RN
ERPZEEONCENERNEEBRARER
ZENEEHRYRB(CMASE B HEAF
HREBBRRENE HERZREERK
DT

The Group
rEH
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
2,133 127

B0 5 Bt R L T B R R AR
H22D

The Group
rEH

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
17,718 28,127
136 336
- 2,852
- (13,200)
(641) (897)
17,213 17,718

R-TE——F+_A=+—HB AKREBE
W B 5 AR 5K % H b & AR 51 4917,213,000
L (ZZF—ZFF :17,718,0007% 7t ) f&E 5
EE AT ARE-
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25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) RELATED PARTIES 25. B (FEfT) BIE A LT FRIE

The Group The Company
r5E NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

TR TET TR TAT

Rz R
— MR RFEES R R

Amounts due from:
- non-controlling shareholders of

subsidiaries 3,590 3,172 - -
Amounts due to: B 23R

- Mr. Lau bt 24,869 8,270 22,977 8,037

- an associate -—REERT 500 500 - -

25,369 8,770 22,977 8,037

The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on EHAEIEE T B NBREREE-

demand.

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 6. BEeRELZEY

Cash at banks earns interest at floating bank deposit rates.

The cash and cash equivalents of the Group are mainly
denominated in RMB and HK$, which are the functional
currency of the relevant entities of the Group. Included in
cash and cash equivalents at 31st December, 2011 was an
amount in RMB of approximately RMB63,185,000 (2010:
RMB37,701,000). RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies.

RTINS IRF BRIT A EFRIA L -

AEBZRERACEBYWEEULRE
BEEEERECMEEBARB RB T
B-RZE——F+=ZHA=+—H R
e RESEZENEREARBSBHOAR
#63,185,000C (T E—ZTF: AR¥
37,701,0007T) - ARETSERELIB AR
ftb 55 H o
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27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. ENESZBRRREMENER
The following is an aged analysis of the trade payables NERMBLEERA ZENESERERIREER
presented based on the invoice date at the end of reporting HER 2B ST T -
period:

The Group
AEH

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET

Trade payables: BB SRR
0 to 30 days TEx=+H 1,463 3,704
31 to 90 days =t+—Z=ATH 128 159
Over 90 days BiBdh+A 305 599
1,896 4,462
Rebates payable FEAT B FRIE 76,291 116,190
Prepayments from customers KPEHEMHIE 9,615 62,379
Other payables and accruals HibENBER R ESTER 18,074 20,842
105,876 203,873

28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 28. SRITREMEE
The Group
AR EE

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Bank loans RITER - 23,600
Other borrowings Hinfg & 15,250 26,430
15,250 50,030
Secured B 15,250 14,630
Unsecured AR - 35,400

15,250 50,030
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28.

29.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

At the end of reporting period, all the Group’s borrowings
were repayable within one year. All bank loans were
guaranteed by the Company.

Fixed-rate borrowings EEEE
Variable-rate borrowings FEBE
Effective interest rate (per annum) B
— fixed-rate borrowings —EEBE
— variable-rate borrowings —ZEEBE

At 31st December, 2011, the Group had total banking
facilities of approximately HK$24,600,000 (2010:
HK$23,600,000) of which had not been utilised (2010:
HK$23,600,000 were utilised) and were guaranteed by the
Company.

Other borrowing of HK$15,250,000 (2010: HK$14,630,000)
was secured by a pledge of 100,000 tons of minerals
reserve as at the end of reporting period.

PROMISSORY NOTES

As part of the consideration for the acquisition of Sifa
Mining, on 23rd December, 2009, the Company issued 2
tranches of the promissory notes in the principal sum of
approximately HK$89.7 million in aggregate, all of which are
interest-free. Other particulars of the promissory notes are
as follows:

1. First tranche promissory note

This carries a principal sum of HK$40,000,000 and it
is non-transferable and will mature at the end of the
twelve months after issue.

28.

29.

RITRHEMBEE (F)
REBZMEER ARERBREAR—
FREE -2MRITEFALARBER
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTEx THET
15,250 26,430
- 23,600
15,250 50,030
8.47% 11.65%
n/a® & A 5.58% - 10%
Eé_==——¢+_ﬂ:+—El CAEE

48 4R 77 @b & 924,600,000 L (=T —F
¢ :23,600,0008 7T) - BERRITRE %K
A (-2 —Z 4 23,600,000 T
F) I A D RHER

RERBPEER E4 {5 515,250,000
BT (ZZFE—2F%F :14,630,000% 7T)
100,000ME7E = & R {E R -

EERE

ZEENF+ZAZ+ =R ARFET
AN & 4858 A ££4989,700,0007% JT H 7
HERE (EAKRBIEEEENLONE - Z
ERAEBREE  BHEEMFFBEOT

1. FB-—HEZEE

ZH AL EZENAREREB
40,000,000 7T & 1~ A 8 % - 5 50 3%
THRE+ BB EREEE
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29. PROMISSORY NOTES (Continued) 20. R HEE (,f/g)
2. Second tranche promissory note 2. EZHALZER
This carries a principal sum of HK$49,691,000. It is ZWEFZEZEBENRNS ETE A
transferable and will mature at the end of the twenty- 49,691,000/ 7+ /A& 7] B8 3% 5 50 3%
fourth month after issue. T18E @A SRR -
The movement of the 2 tranches of promissory notes and MLEHZEELSEBERARN S EE T
the respective effective interest rate are set out as below: R
First Second
tranche tranche Total
£t EZH ot
HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
As at 1st January, 2010 R-ZZE—ZFF—HF—H 7,549 42,130 49,679
Interest charge FEER 597 3,666 4,263
Adjustment to estimated compensation st E HFEESE 2
by the vendors i (109) = (109)
Transfer to amount due to note holder, B = B ZIEHE A
Mr. Lau (Note i) Rk E e (M) (8,037) = (8,037)
As at 31st December, 2010 R-_Z—FTF
+—HA=+—H - 45,796 45,796
Interest charge FEER - 3,895 3,895
- 49,691 49,691
Transfer to amount due to note holder, B2 # &= B ZiE3EH A
Mr. Lau (Note ii & Note 42) BEEZ SR
( B 5Eii B Fff 7E42) = (49,691) (49,691)
As at 31st December, 2011 R-ZF—%F
+ZA=+— - - -

i}
H

=
)

Effective interest rate 8.13% 8.72%
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29. PROMISSORY NOTES (Continued) 20. R HEE (,f/i?)

Notes: B 5T -

()  On 22nd December, 2010, the maturity date of the first () RZE-—ZFF+_A-+ZH F—H#%
tranche of promissory notes, the note holder, Mr. Lau, REENINEBEH EEEFEEARLEERE
agreed to transfer the outstanding balance of approximately IEEE T BN BRERERIERE
HK$8,037,000 to the amount due to him with the terms of RIS BR IR EAEE 498,037,000 T B & e
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. B BRI -

(i)  On 22nd December, 2011, the maturity date of the second iy RZEBE——F+-_A=-+=—B F_#&
tranche of promissory notes, the note holder, Mr. Lau, REENINEEH EHEEFEARLEERE
agreed to transfer the outstanding balance of approximately EEE T BN BRERERIERE
HK$49,691,000 to the amount due to him with the terms of KGR N FEA49,691,0008 TLEE B 2 flE
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. SEIEES: R

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. B A<
Number of
ordinary shares Share capital
EEREE LN
2011 2010 2011 2010
’000 '000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Tk TR TER THT

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREE010B T LRk

Authorised EERAE 1,000,000 1,000,000 100,000 100,000

Issued and fully paid BETRBRRIBRA

At beginning of year F1) 821,663 678,806 82,166 67,881

Issue of shares upon conversion of REBRTTRRERZER

convertible loan notes BTG - 142,857 - 14,285

At end of year R 821,663 821,663 82,166 82,166




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R AR M EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HHZ T ——F+_A=+—HItFE

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 14th
January, 2004 (the “Scheme”) which was effective on 26th
January, 2004 and will expire on 26th January, 2014. The
primary purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives to
directors, eligible employees and other qualified persons
who in the opinion of the board of directors has made or will
make contributions which are or may be beneficial to the
Group as a whole.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company may,
subject to certain conditions, grant to any directors,
employees, suppliers, agents, customers, distributors,
business associates or partners, professionals or other
advisors of, or consultants or contractors to, any members
of the Group or any associated companies who in the
opinion of the board of directors has made or will make
contributions which are or may be beneficial to the Group
as a whole, options to subscribe for shares in the Company
at any price but not less than the higher of (i) nominal value
of a share, (ii) the closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange on the day of grant, and (iii) the average of the
closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant
of the options, subject to a maximum of 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, (i)
the total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in
time, and (ii) the number of shares issued and to be issued
in respect of which options granted and may be granted to
any individual in any 12-month period is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time.

Options granted must be taken up within the time period
set out in the offer letter and upon payment of HK$1 for
each lot of share option granted.

1. URBBRERME

AZR5

ARBRRZZEEMF—A+MUNBARMK—F
RERRAERTE ([5M8l)) - ZEEIR=ZZEW
F—AZ+RBERTBR - —NF—
AZ+ A BER-FEZEEBENARNE
EERAEANEEEENZEIEL S E
EEBRAAEBREMCES 5 EKE
BREMEERATL TIEE-

RIBHE EETHREZRHT  ARAE
FURNESERRYAEHEEERN B IF
MK ELBERA A EEBRER 2 N EE
EARERAREMBERRZES B
E-ftEm RKE -FFP 2HE XHH
BARBH HEEMIEMER  FHHAA
AR T A RERERRBBERARK
2 B ERBEBIEOROBD®E
B (EORELAEBRA 2 BHE
Ke(iii B 0 70 B2 B A R h A AT AL AR
SHREMIAz FHRTEZRSE M
RO ZBEEEARE 2 RNEBEBERZ AR
RETEDEITRANZI10%HR -

ﬂii@$’“ﬂﬁ§i¥$§'ﬂﬂ:)&ﬁf ()RR ET B ]
SHEBREZEERNDEE  TEHEEY
KAETET—JE#FaﬁE?é‘fTfoﬁZm%* T (ii)
MEREAR+Z@EABERERL R
R ERE BB BITREETROE
TEBHARREMNKEBMEZEITRG
21% °

BREARENREAMRS 2 BEAT R
ZR A EARERERREZBREST
SXMH1ETZER -
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 1. RO EBERBNZZ2RSE (££)
(Continued)
At 31st December, 2011, the number of shares in R-ZZE——F+_A=+—H BE:
respect of which options had been granted and remained B EBEBNAMAKTEERE 2B
outstanding under the Scheme was 8,246,000 (2010: i & B A8,246,0008% (=& — & &
8,446,000), representing 1% (2010: 1%) of the shares of 8,446,000R%) * Mh AR AR Z BB EITHK
the Company in issue at that date. MZ21% (ZE—FF:1%) °
The following table discloses movement of the Company’s TEZEREHE T ——FN T —ZF
share options held by employees and consultants (including +ZA=+—"HULEFEEEKLER (81
directors) during the years ended 31st December, 2011 and EE)IEAARIEIRE &)
2010:
Exercise  Outstanding Forfeited  Outstanding Forfeited = Outstanding
Date of Exercisable price at during at during at
Name grant period per share 1.1.2010 the year 31.12.2010 the year 31.12.2011
RZB-BF RZB——%
RZE-BF +=A T=A
=34 -A-B =t+-H Eqr=[
£ REBH GEd: THE HARTRE  REAXN HARTHE  REREXXK CESKd
HKS
BT
Category I:
£—8:
- Directors 7.5.2007 7.5.2007 t0 6.5.2012 1.29 3,050,000 (100,000) 2,950,000 - 2,950,000
-E% ZTTtE “Z3+FRALAZ
AAtA “Z--FRARAE
Category II:
E-8:
- Employees 7.5.2007 7.5.2007 t0 6.5.2012 1.29 1,562,000 (6,000) 1,546,000 (200,000) 1,346,000
- g8 ZZTtE “Z3+FRALAZ
AA+A “Z--—FRARAE
Category lll:
F=H:
- Consultants (Note) ~ 7.5.2007 7.5.2007 t0 6.5.2012 1.29 3,950,000 - 3,950,000 - 3,950,000
- BRI (BIE) ZZTE “ZTtERALAZE
AA+A S Ay =
Total for all categories 8,552,000 (106,000) 8,446,000 (200,000) 8,246,000

AR5t

Exercisable at the end
of the year 8,446,000 8,246,000
RERALTE

Weighted average
exercise price HK$1.29 HK$1.29 HK$1.29 HK$1.29 HK$1.29
METATREE 1.297% 7T 1.297% 7T 1.298 7T 1.297%8 7T 1.298 7
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Note:

The Group granted share options to the consultants in return for
their provision of management consultancy services to the Group.

No option was granted during each of the two years ended 31st
December, 2011 and 2010.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following are the deferred tax liabilities recognised and
movements thereon during the current and prior years:

31.

32.

DURHBERNRZRS (&)

B AL

AEBERTEMZBRE FARERAEE
REERHARB ORI -

HE-T —£R-F-TF+-A=+—~
L 4 5 4 S 4 55 A

ELEHEER

TERRRAFER EFECER
HEBEREEE:

BT

Revaluation of

mining right

arising from

acquisition

W B 5l B

RIS fh

HK$’000

TET

At 1st January, 2010 R-ZZE—ZFF—H—H 101,473

Exchange adjustments bE 5 P B 4,484

Credit to profit or loss FFAE &= (133)
At 31st December, 2010 and 1st January, 2011 RZE—ZEF+_A=+—A8K

—T——%—H—H 105,824

Exchange adjustments B 5 2L 4,484

At 31st December, 2011 R_ZE——F+=-—A=+—8” 110,308

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1st January, 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to approximately HK$54,375,000 (2010:
HK$18,413,000) as the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

BEFBRECEMEHE BT NF—
A—B#& P BEKERARAMRIUERE
KHIR B BAZTANM - AR AEE A
s FBENB AR R SR NEET
B 2= %8 4954,375,0008 7T (— T — T4 :
18,413,000/ 7T ) B Bl B i - B S A AT a2
A BARRBE T =5 MW ERGRE
MR Z ST LR E BT IRE T IR
ﬁo
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33. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 33. HEKEB AT
RZZE—FN\A—H T&EBEIETZ
RELE—HYEEBIB 2 MBRARMN
REIRBEERBR QA -

On 1st August, 2011, the Group disposed of a subsidiary,
YAL Technology International Company Limited, which was
dormant, at HK$1 consideration.

HEAMKERERARNLERHZEE

The net liabilities of YAL Technology International Company

Limited at the date of disposal were as follows: SFREIN R
HK$'000
FAT

Net liabilities disposed of: FrEEaEFaE:

Cash and cash equivalents e RReEED 505
Other payable and accrual HEt AR REFER @)
Amount due to a director i —REENRIE (500)
@)
Gain on disposal &z e 2
Total consideration BRAE -

Net cash outflow arising on disposal:
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of

HEEE RSB FE
HEZRESRRECEFEDY

(505)
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OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

During the year, the Group made minimum lease payments
of approximately HK$5,931,000 (2010: HK$5,834,000)
under operating leases.

At the end of reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
leases in respect of rented premises which fall due as

follows:

Within one year —FR

In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FEZFERF
(BIEEEMSF)

Over five years AFMNE

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office properties and retail shops.
Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for terms
ranging from one to eight years.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31st December, 2011, the Company had provided
guarantee to a bank in respect of credit facilities granted
to its subsidiary of approximately HK$24,600,000 (2010:
HK$23,600,000) of which had not been utilised (2010:
HK$23,600,000 were utilised).

In the opinion of the directors, no material liabilities will arise
from the above corporate guarantee which arose in the
ordinary course of the business.

At 31st December, 2011 and 2010, the Group had no
contingent liabilities.

34.

35.

REEY
7 % @ 1F 25 AN

FRAEBRBEECEHOI M2 HER
EFRIA4 55,931,000 70 (—E—Z &
5,834,000 7T ) °

REFRPEER AEERBE AT HEAE
HMBER TR 2 HEMERAN
B ARRREESAEWT

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
3,666 4,420
3,326 5,452
1,221 1,553
8,213 11,425

,ié HANESEARERETRAIEYE
ZEEENzEAZ BORESHE—
?\E)\ﬁZEﬁﬂﬁé?ﬁﬁ&?ﬁi °

AR

m

R=—ZZFE——F+=_A=+—H" &
ARAERENBARERS ZFER
B #24,600,0008 L (=T —ZTF:
23,600,000/ 7t ) M — A RIT IR &R
ERGCEERERABA (ZE—ZF:

23,600,000/ L E B ) °

EERB R—REBEBTFELEZ LA
RAERETEELEFAEREE-

R-E——ER-F-FFET-A=t—
A RRSRERARAR-
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36.

37.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 31st December, 2011 and 2010, the Group and the
Company did not have any significant capital commitments.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. Under the rules of the Scheme, the employer and
its employees are required to make contributions to the
Scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the Scheme is to make the
required contributions under the Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute a fixed rate of payroll costs to
the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions.

36.

37.

BEAXRAEE

RZF-——FRZF-FF+A=1—
A A5 B R AR AT AR A
o

iR k48 7 5 &

AEERMBERAGERREREERFE
REeFE (8] - FHEAENEE
HEFEARNZESRAKBEED MR
BREFEZRA BEREEBAELRR
A3 TE 2 L R AT Bl - N B 53
ZME—BERIRBETEELREMRR

AEBEFRZMBRAREREHATEK
FEBRZBERERRKBHTEIKE - %
E M A RIZAR F & AR 2 B 5E L P R %
RABRHEEIRG REEENRERES -
AEBYHZERBNFE 2 —RERE
i E K
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38. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(@)

Details of the Group’s outstanding balances with
related parties at the end of reporting period are set
out in the consolidated statement of financial position
and Note 25.

During the year, the Group disposed of a subsidiary to
a director of the Company. Details of disposal are set
out in Note 38.

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of

the Group’s key management during the year was as
follows:

% Hi 1@ A
RKERH

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits

The remuneration of directors and other members of
key management was determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

During the year, the Group received management
fee income amounting to HK$272,000 (2010:
HK$480,000) from Synergy Technologies (Asia) Limited
of which Mr. Lau was the common director.

3B.BEATZHKE

(@)

RERMAER NEBEREA L
CRBEEBFBIENGEET BN
= M HIFE25 o

FRN AEER—BARARESHE
—ZXKBAR - B EFBENK
FF33

TEEEABZH M

FREERAEFEMTIEEEAE
ZBE&mT

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
5,568 5,385
(45) 176
5,523 5,561

EERHMFEEBABZME AT
MEE2@ZEREMALRRETSE
BIRETE °

£ (7 - AN @ [7)Synergy Technologies
(Asia) Limited (B £ E R ABZ A
EF)WH272,0008 L (=T —=F
£ : 480,000/ 7)) BB YA o
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39. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 39. "N EHEE
Share
Share  Contributed  Translation option  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
R EE EaES BERE BRERE REER aE

HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000
TER TR AT TEn T TER

(Note)
(Ftzr)
At 1st January, 2010 RZZ-%%F
—A—H 306,879 40,948 40,696 4,483 (570,346) (177,340)
Profit for the year FEEN - - - - 594 594
Exchange differences arising FaEmELVEREZE
on translation - - (2,149 - - (2,149
Transfer of reserve upon RERBLREEARE
forfeiture of share options - - - (55) 55 -
Issue of shares upon conversion  FAEHA AT R & 5
of convertible loan notes ZERBIRNG 86,083 = = = = 86,083
At 31st December, 2010 RZE-%F
+-A=1+-H 392,962 40,948 38,547 4,428 (569,697) (92,812)
Profit for the year FEEF - - - - 10,336 10,336
Exchange differences arising on ~ R#AEMEL 2
translation ERER - - (1,088) - - (1,088)
Transfer of reserve upon N CERGE A
forfeiture of share options - - - (105) 105 -
At 31st December, 2011 RZZ——F
+-A=1+-H 392,962 40,948 37,459 4323 (559,256) (83,564)
Note: The contributed surplus represents the difference between ffizsy: BHEBESAEBENBATIHARD S WE
the consolidated shareholder’s funds of the subsidiaries at EHZHEARREESEHANRNRERE
the date on which they were acquired by the Company, and 28 B Bt U B T 22 1T IR D 2 E B R
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the A% B A 5 B |45 A 3£ 17 1,000,0004% A%
acquisition at the time of the group reorganisation less the PR ZTIBEME 2 =5 o

amount applied to pay up the 1,000,000 shares at the time
of the group reorganisation.
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of which
are incorporated with limited liability, at 31st December,
2011 and 2010 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WEAREH

Express Fortune
Holdings Limited

Express Fortune Limited

REARAA

Fortune Shanghai

RELE

Fortune Telecom
International Company
Limited

REEGERERAR

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

AR/
FX L3t B

British Virgin Islands
RBRLEE

Hong Kong

BB

Wholly foreign owned
enterprise established

in the PRC
TEHRBIK
NEBELE

Hong Kong

B8

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital
ERTRBERE/
&R

Ordinary US$100
LEBR100FE T

Ordinary HK$10
Non-voting deferred
HK$5,000,000 (Note)
LTERIOET
ERERE

BB
5,000,000/ 7
(BaT)

US$28,100,000

28,100,000% ¢

Ordinary HK$10,000

10,0008 7T

40.

TEMBLREHR

RZE——FR-ZFT-—ZF+_-_A=+—
BZARREEWB AT (B RAMEKT

MARAB)FBOT :

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital
held by the Company

KRR RITRE/

A EREE 2 A
2011 2010
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Principal activity

FEER

Investment holding

REER

Maintaining the
corporate office

Trading in mobile
phones

EEVYER

Investment holding

REZR
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 40. T EMBATER (&)

(Continued)

Issued and nominal value of
Place of fully paid issued share capital/
incorporation/ share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital held by the Company Principal activity
EMARL/ ERTRBRRE/ EARMBERTRE/
WEARERE B AL 3t B TEMEX M EREE LA TEXR
2011 2010
Sifa Mining Sino-foreign equity joint RMB1,000,000 50.8% 50.8% Exploration and
ventures established extraction of
in the PRC mining resources
BEEX ERERLzRMEER AKR¥1,000,0007T HRRFAREEER
S
Telefortune (China) Hong Kong Ordinary 100% 100% Investment holding
Investments Limited HK$40,000,000
REFHN (PE)RE £ LRk REZR
BRAR 40,000,000/ 7T
Top Emperor Investments Hong Kong Ordinary 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited HK$10,000
HEREARAA BB T3 M10,0008 7T REZR
Zhuhai Reminda Sino-foreign equity joint RMB10,000,000 51% 51% Trading in mobile
ventures established phones
in the PRC
KEERE TEHRBEKIZ AR EERYEE
mONEERE 10,000,0007T

Proportion of



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR MR

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE—_F——F+_A=+—HIFE

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Note:

The deferred shares carry practically no rights to dividends or to
receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of the
respective company or to participate in any distribution on winding
up.

The Company directly holds the interest in Express Fortune
Holdings Limited. All other interests shown above are
indirectly held by the Company.

The principal activities are carried out in the place of
incorporation/establishment except for Express Fortune
Holdings Limited which mainly carries out its business in the
PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results or net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

40. T EMBARER (&)

B 5

BEIERR (W BAEER B - TR AT RER
CBERHFEIARG LEEXRERBESE
{EJD/)—IE"

A ) B ¥+ B Express Fortune Holdings
Limited## s + M =X FTRFT A H A w1
HARARIMERA -

BrExpress Fortune Holdings Limited® 2

ERBEREXHIN EREBRBHNGE
Ak SZ,/ B 32t B 45 4 -

EMBRRARFRRNFRETMEFGEE
ERES -

ERFVEBDESRASHVEASEER
REEFENEARARETENBRAR -EF
RE HINEMHBARZHEESHH
BERBRITEK-

—T——FF | PEREEZERERAF
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41. PARTICULARS OF ASSOCIATE 4. BEQLTER
Details of the Company’s associate at 31st December, RN _E—ZEF+_A=+—
2011 and 2010 are as follows: HZARRABERAFBEOT:
Form Place of Proportion of nominal value
of business incorporation/ of issued capital held
Name of associate structure operation indirectly by the Company Principal activity
EMAL/ XABBERE
BENRERE S 301 S " ERTRAHERD L TEEK
2011 2010
Artchief Incorporated Hong Kong 50% 50% Trading in electronic
products
g AR AL e BESTEmM
42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 42. KEBRERERWE
CASH FLOWS
Major non cash transactions FEHEELXE
During the year, other than the transfer of HK$49,691,000 FA-BREE 2 NS85 R49,691,00078
principle sum of second tranche promissory note as set TZE HAREE (RKE2)4 EF
out in Note 29, certain other receivables of HK$17,163,000 H fth fE U BR 3017,163,000/ L E B B 2 58
were settled through the current account with Mr. Lau and EZEREPES BHASETERSE
had no cash impact to the Group. FEo
43. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43. #t &M B, &
The financial statements were approved and authorised for PERRER_ZE——_F=Z_A=+HEZE

issue by the Board of Directors on 30th March, 2012. =g REET -



RESULTS

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit/(loss)
Other income
Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses
- share-based payment expenses

- other administrative expenses
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries
Allowance for trade and other receivables

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
available-for-sale investment

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
goodwill

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
interests in associates

Fair value gain on an investment property

Fair value gain on an embedded
non-option derivative

Fair value loss on convertible loan notes

Gain on disposal of an associate

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Reversal of impairment loss of trade and
other receivables

Share of results of associates

Finance costs

Profit/(loss) before income tax
Income tax (expense)/credit

Profit/(loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Yogs
HEKA

7/ (8)
HAA
HE R A
THER
— B RERX
ZER
—HMTHER
HENBARZEBE
ERESEALEM
FE YR BR 7R 2 1
FAHRHERERR
HERER
REEERZRERR
PBE D AR ER
HEEE
—RERENFE A FERE
RANGFHEIIETAL
SRR 6
TREEREBZAFERR
HE—RKBERA M
HE—XMB QA Y
RWE S ER L H A
YR 2 RERBRD
DIEBERR %%
BEKA

BAEHAEHN,/ (B1)
FrisB (i) /#%

EEEH/ (ER)
Fefh:

ARREEA
SIS

Financial Summary

MBME

Year ended 31st December,
BEZt-A=1+-BLEE
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FTHET FTHET FTHET TER
2,744,597 2,097,593 2,124,237 2,544,120 1,765,862
(2,838,162) (2,063,001) (2,084,030) (2,479,356) (1,704,539)
(93,565) 34,592 40,207 64,764 61,323
17,791 11,262 12,144 16,403 5,322
(50,623) (23,092) (24,064) (22,450) (14,885)
(14,816) - - - -
(31,490) (29,090 (24,493) (27,308) (31,823)
- - (4,974) - -
(46,379 (47,364) (994) (2,852) -
- (632) 217) - -
- (5,105) (184,340 - (2,910)
(18,193) (5,725) - - -
2,240 - - - -
- 5,538 - - -
- - (326) - -
- 104 1,437 - -
- - - - 2
- - 14,916 397 641
(2,125) (4,036) 732 444 5
(26,350) (11,837) (2,330) (11,658) (6,535)
(263,510) (75,385)  (172,302) 17,740 11,140
(3,337) (3,459) (127) (2,104) 15
(266,847) (78,844)  (172,429) 15,636 11,155
(266,679) (78,719)  (171,983) 14,875 15,922
(168) (125) (446) 761 (4,767)
(266,847) (78,844)  (172,429) 15,636 11,155
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Financial Summary

MBME

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE

At 31st December,
R+t=A=+-H
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
FTET FTET FTET FTET FTHET

Total assets BEEE 520,982 385332 698,937 867,381 742,748
Total liabilities BELE (260,843)  (190,552)  (385,625)  (421,075)  (263,265)

260,139 194,780 313,312 446,306 479,483

Equity attributable to owners of VN/NGIE DN LR
the Company 255063 189,498 158,254 283,611 314,780
Non-controlling interests GRS 5,076 5282 155058 162,695 164,703

260,139 194,780 313,312 446,306 479,483
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